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Auditors’ Report
To: The Shareholders of Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt “S.A.E.”
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank —
Egypt (S.A.E), (“The Bank™) and its subsidiaries (together “The Group”) which comprise the
consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2025 and the consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the financial year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other notes.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the rules of preparation and presentation of the banks’ financial
statements basis of recognition and measurement issued by the Central bank of Egypt on 16
December 2008 as amended by the regulations issued on 26 February 2019 and in light of the
prevailing Egyptian laws and regulations. Management’s responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error; management’s responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and in the light
of the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with the ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the group’s preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2025
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended,
in accordance with the rules of preparation and presentation of the banks’ financial statements basis
of recognition and measurement issued by the Central bank of Egypt on 16 December 2008 as
amended by the regulations issued on 26 February 2019 and in light of the prevailing Egyptian laws
and regulations.

| Auditors \
¥ “Ashraf¥anidouh Dr. Ahghed'\ Shawki
Accountants-And-Auditors Register No. (26231) Accountants And AiditersRegjster No. (4200)
Financial Regulatory Authority Register No. (383) Financial Regulatory Authority Register No. (5)
CBE Register No. (569) CBE Register No. (11)
Fellow of Egyptian Society of Accountants and Fellow of Egyptian Society of Accountants and
Auditors Auditors
Member of American Institute of Certified Public Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
Accountants in England and Wales
Fellow of Egyptian Tax Society Fellow of Egyptian Tax Society
PricewaterhouseCoopers Ezzeldeen, Diab & Co, Forvis Mazars Mostafa Shawki
Public Accountants 153 Mohamed Farid St., Bank Misr Tower, Cairo

One Ninety, Parcel A - Building A2, South 90%
Street, New Cairo 11835, Egypt

Cairo on 8 February 2026



ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Consolidated statement of financial position — as of 31 December 2025

Note 31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Mo EGP (in rhausands) EGP (in theucands)

Assets
Cash and due from Cenvral Bank 15 19,086,612 13,811,689
Due from banks 16 57,433,131 08,117,659
Financing and facilities ra banks {ner of expected credit losses) 17 4,802,479 2,030,727
Financing and facilities to e s (netaf d credit losses) 18 147,236,062 895,691,071
Financial leased assers zo others 25 2,683 563 2,039,700
Non Current Assers Held for Sate 1,187 -
Islamic Pre-Promised exchan ge contracts B 13981 25402
Financial investments
- Fair value through profits and losses 119 143,461 122019
~Financial investments at FYOCE 2/19 22620,348 2927923
- Financial imvestments at amortized cost 3/19 80,350,465 39,040,223
i Tes in 1 0 648,093 456,545
Intangible assers (net of aceumulated amonization) 21 50,435 44356
Other assers 2z 10,356,822 5,241,682
Fixed assats (net of accumulated depreciarion) 23 953,087 713,160
Investments properties 24 3,594 7982
Deferred tax assats 32 337,885 196,964
Total assers 346,711.205 260,467,106
Liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due tobanks 26 5921,757 14,837,337
Cuswsrmers’ deposies 27 277,864,370 199,982,599
Islamic Pre promised mhlngﬂ CONIracts 28 140,892 14,710
Subaordi d Fl Ing / OzherIsfami Financings 29 10,232 006 10,401,271
Other liabifitas 30 11,407,931 7670203
Current incom & Lax Il.lbllity 4,230,538 2,647,113
Other provisions 3t 1,825,694 1,557,712
Definad banefics obligations 39 453,161 369,454
Total liabilities 312,076,349 237,480,399
Equity
Issused & Paid up Capital 2/33 12,000,000 6,000,000
Reserves 34 1,613,793 1118374
Difference berween face value and presentvalue for Reduced cost subordinated financi ng 19,323 24,950
Rerained earnings 35 20,963,164 15,815,345
Total equity attributzble te equity holders' of the bank 34,596,280 22,958,669
Non-conrrolling intereses 38576 28,038
Total equiry 34,631,856 22,986,707
Total liabilities and equity 346,711,205 260,467,106

Independenz auditor's report “attached”

The accompanying notes from (1) to (41) are integral part of these financial statements akg

Masamoud El Semin P

Financial Controller w\J

Cairo on 05 February 2026
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2025

Note 31December2025 31 December2023

No EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Income from Murabaha, Musharaka, Mudaraba and similarincome 49,262,455 36,944,486
Cost of deposits and similar costs (29,110,120) (21,691,838)
Net income from funds 7 20,152,335 15,252,648
Fees and commissions income 3,566,871 2,590,419
Fees and commiissions expenses (837,021) (695,288)
Net fees and commission income 8 2,729,850 1,895,131
Dividend income 9 6,307 5415
Net rading income 10 546,571 708,711
Administrative expenses T (3431,217) (2514518)
Orther operating expenses 12 {1,178,050) (927,002)
Expected credit losses 13 {1,514,062) {2170571)
Gain/Loss on financial investments 9,155 -
Share Of Associates Results 161,253 140,338
profit for the year before tax 17,482,142 12,290,152
Income tax expense 14 {4,881,186) {3,274,213)
Nert profit for the year 12,600,956 9,015,939
Attributable to:
Shareholder's equity of the bank 12,588,572 9,008926
Nnn-cnntrolling interests 12,384 7013
Net profit for the year 12,600,956 9,015,939
Basic earning per share in net profit for the year (EGP) 11.28 14.02

The accompanying notes from (1) to (41) are integral part of these financial statements and are to be read together.

C1 - INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL FRU



ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2025

31December 2025 31 December 2024

EGP (in thousands} EGP (in thousands)
Net profit for the year 12,600,956 9,015,939
Izems thar will not be reclassified to the Profit and Loss:
Change in fairvafue reserve of equity instruments at fair value
. i 6152 98,888
through other comprehensive income
Taximpact related w ather comprehensive income that wifl not
{736) (22,359}
be reclassified to the profitorloss
Items that will be reclassified to the Profit and Loss:
Change in fair value reserve of debtinstruments at falr value
4,290 34028
through other comprehensive income
Expected creditloss for fair value of debt Instruments measured at
1578 5518
fair value through other comprehensive incomea
Deffered Income tax related to itemns that are reclassified to the
{12,215) (9,553)
profits and losses
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ,net of
419,069 106,512
tax
Comprehensive income for the year net of tax 12,650,025 9,122,451
Attributable to:
Shareholder's equity of the bank 12637641 9115438
Mon-controlling interests 12,384 7013
Comprehensive income for the year net of rax 12,650,025 9,122,451

The accompanying notes frorn (1) to (41} are integral part of these financial statements and are to be read rogether.
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Note 31December 2025 31 December2024
Mo EGP{in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activitles
profit for the ysar before tax 17482142 12290152
Adjustments to reconclle profits with cash flows from operaring activities
Dep: avd Amor of fixed and Intangible assets " 177,748 132,268
Depreciation of Investmant praperty 24 3,101 1,213
Charga impatrmant loss of financing and facilities to custamers 18 41,468,702 2,202512
Chargs impairment loss of financing and fadilities to banks 18 4897 2,481
Collections of loans previously written off 138 44643 46547
Charge other provisions n 289076 631,693
Prowi no longer required other than financing pravision »n {2,388) 342771}
Provisions used other than financing provision 31 {2512) (189717}
Bends’ pramium and discount amortization {750441) (1,151,808}
Foreign currancy valuzton differences of financing provisions in forsign currencies B {194,613) 711,522
Foreign currency valuation differences of provisions in foreign clas ather than fi ing p 3 {16,193) 209,509
Foreign currency valuation diffarences of due from banks provisions in forelgn curvencles 1% {1.4686) 8370
Forwign eurrency valuation differences of financial inv t FVOCH in foreign c 20,409 (194121)
Foreign =umn:yvaluaﬂendiffnuncnofﬁnau=lal assets at ACin foreign curmencles 664,219 {2,191967)
Foreign currency valuation differences provisionsin foreign currencies for finandialinstruments at AC {5407) 46971
Foreign currency valuation differences of subordinated financing - With coupon (465,400) 4098043
Foraign currency valuation differences of subardi d financing - st red 4 29 {111,881) 681,592
Foreign currency valuation differences of subordinared financing - at reduced cost - Equity 38934 37671
(Gains) val ffir ciali 1ents at FVPL {15,528) {19.722)
[osses) / Gains from revaluation af Promised- based forward exchange contraces 10 108,755 (1502
(Ref )/ chargeimp loss of dus frem banks 13 {11,644) 1,084
(Release} / charge impalrmentloss pravisions of FWOCE instr 13 1648 {5,518)
Charge /(rel ) tmp loss of fi jal investments at amortized cost 13 50,459 {29.968)
Charge /{relsase} Impairment loss of other assens 7 300 7,268
{Gains} sale of equity Instruments ar FVPL {6,850) {16,389)
Gains / {Losses) from sale of investments in subsidiaries & associates {9,155} -
{Gains) on sale of fixed assars 12 {108,110) (10890)
{Gains) on sale of Invescment Property 12 {2,100) {B.886)
Bank's Share of Associames’ results {161,253) {140,338)
Dividends income from equity instruments at FVOCt 9 {5,306) 1.747)
Dividendsincome from investments in subsidiaries and associates ) {668}
Amortzati f aubord d financing using EIR methed 29 44571 43155
Operating profits before changes in assers and llabllitles resulting from operating acrivities 18,546,165 17.913.922
Net change in assets & liabilities
Due from banks with maturity more than 90 days. 3,451,085 {20,351,865)
Treasury bills with maturity trore than 90 days {9,300827) 4,656
Financal investments ax FYPL 937 127,146
Financing and facilities to customers and banks 18 {55,814,465) {37,273,326)
Orherassers {5.170,505) {2.034452)
Financial leased assets 1o others {529,8457) {115,339)
Dus wobanks 26 {8,915,580) 8,358,406
Customers’ deposits 27 7Ie01,77 F2ASS096
Financtal Pre promised Contracts 28847 {12,206}
Othae liabilities 3845423 1,040,769
ployess' Benefits obligations 39 83,708 82095
Irvcome tax paid (3,450,633) (2,223,701}
Net Cash flows generated from Dperating activities 20,536,069 38,371,287

C1 - Internal Financial Control FRU



ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.AE

Consolidated statement of cash flows - continued

For the year ended 31 December 2025

MNote 31Decambaer 2025 3 December2024
No. EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)

Cash flows from investing activities

Payrvantste pur:huoo{fixed assats B Branches fixtures 23 {420578) {178871)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 134,368 1,005
Payments to purchase of intangible assets (29434 (24935)
Proceeds from Sale of Investment Properzy 4,200 15,094
Payments o purchue finandal investments at FVOC1 (16,764,487} {1,923497)
[ ds from ry of financial I s at FVOCH 39084690 £30,438
Payments 1o purchase financial investments at AC (40,700,113} {17,878,3%69)
P ds from ry of financtal | atAC 3,956,706 6487717
Payments m purch i subsidiaries and associates (1) :
Proceeds from sale of investments in subsidiaries and associaves 93826 4900
Proceeds from dividends income 6795 5415
Net Cash flows {used in) generated from Investing activities {51.818,038) (12.450,903)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from other long term loans 388281 36356
Dividends income paid {1,055,866) {542500)
Net Cash flows (used In} generared from financing activities {867.585) (506,544)
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents during the year {31,949,554) 25013840
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 80,089,756 55,075,924
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 48,140,212 £0,089, 764
Cash and cash equivalents are represented in
Cash and due from Central Bank of Egypt 15 18086612 13,511,689
Due from banks 16 97442718 98,140,356
Treasury bills 17,516,587 B196584
Central Bank of Egypt Reserves {17,785445) {12473932)
Due from banks with maturity more than three menths from date of acquisition (10834,373) {19.398973}
Treasury bills with maturity more than three marths from dase of scquisition {17.485887) {8185060)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 48,140,212 80,009,764

The accompanying notes from (1} to {41} are integral part of these financial statements and are to be read together.

1 - Internal Firancial Control FRU
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

1- General information
Abu Dhabi Islamic Banik - Egypt {formerly National Development Bank - ajoint stock company) was incorporated as an Egyptian joint
stock company under Law No. 43 of 1974 and its executive regulations in the Arab Republic of Egypr. The main office of ADIBis located

at Cairo Governorate, 9 Rusiom Street - Garden City. ADIB is listed on the Egyptian Stock Exchange.

Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt - an Egypiian Joint Stock Company is subject as a financial institution to the supervision and control of
the Central Bank of Egypt, and ADIB internal Sharia'a control committee in products provided to its clients, whether the products are
investment deposits, Islamic investmene Sukuk or savings accounts. ADIB also fulfils the client's various funding needs by offering a
variety of options such as: Murabaha (Cost-Plus), Musharaka {Joint Ventures} and Ejara (Leasing), as well as, providing Islamic options
for lemer of guarantee, letter of credit and covered cards. ADIB has its own internal Sharia’a contro! commirtee, which is composed of
Shari‘a jurists, qualified with banking, legal and economic knowledge, in order to issue fatwas and legal rulings on all aspects of existing

and new Islamic banking transactions.

ADIB was registered in the Commercial Register on 3 April 2013 by changing ADIB's name from National Development Bank 10 Abu
Dhabi Istamic Bank - Egypt.

Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt -an Egyptian Joint Stock Company provides carparates, retail banking and investment services in the
Arab Republic of Egypt through 75 branches, delegares and agencies employing 2,694 employees on the date of the interim financial
statements.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 Decernber 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors on 05 February 2026.
2-Basis of preparation of the financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the rules of Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) of the
preparation of the banks' financial statements and the principles of recognition and measurement as approved by its board of directors
on 16 December 2008, pertaining to the issuance of financial statements by the Egyptian banks during 2019 according to the rules of
preparation and presentation of financial statements of banks, as well as, the recognirion and measurement basis issued by the (CBE)
after being affected by the application of the requirements of IFRS {9) "Financial Instruments” in light of the instructions issued on 26
February 2019, and in light of the revised Egyptian Accounting Standards (EAS) issued during the year 2015 and its related amendments
and the provisions of lacal laws and in light of the Egyptian faws and regulations related to the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements and in Accordance with the Principles of Islamic Sharia as defined by sharia Committee.

Alf subsidiaries are fully consolidated in the financial statements. The Bank directly and indirectly owns more than half of the voting

rights and has the ability to gover the financial and operating policies of the subsidiaries regardless of the type of acrivity.

- 10-
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT — S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

3-Summary of accounting policies

The following are the most significant accounting palicies used in the preparation of the financial statements. These policies have been

consistently followed for all presented periods, except for re-measurement of finandial assets and recognition of profits and lasses

arising during the compararive period.

(A} Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Consolidated Financial Statements

A/1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that ADIB has the ability to directly or indirectly control its financial and aperating palicies, and ADIB usually

has ownership share that exceeds one-half of the voting rights. This takes into cansideration the impact of the future voting rights,

which can be exercised ar canverted at the current time when evaluating ADIB's ability to control the subsidiaries.

A/1/1 Method of Acquisition

The Bank adopts the acquisition method when processing each business combination.

The marerial consideration transferred in the business combination shall be measured at fair value, which shall be calculated
as the fair values of the assers transferred by the Bank and the liabilities assumed by the Bank to the acquired asset, as well
as, the equity rights issued by the Bank. The transferred material consideration may also include the fair value of any asset or
liability arising from arrangements for a material consideration. The acquired identifiable assets and contingent liabilities
shall be measured at fair value on the date of acquisition. [n each business combination, the Bank shafl measure any non-
contralling profit in the subsidiary on the basis of a percentage of the recognized values of the net identifiable assets of the
subsidiary on the date of acquisition.

Acquisition costs shall be recognized as an expense upon incurred.

In a business combination that is carried out on stages, the Bank shall re-measure the equity previously retained in the entity
acquired at its fair value on the date of acquisition. The gain or loss resulting from re-measurement shall be recognized in
other comprehensive income.

All assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to ransactions berween the Bank's subsidiaries shall
be fully excluded. The apprapriate adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiaries shall be made to ensure thar

the financial statements are consistent with the Group's accounting policies, if required

A/1/2 Changes in the Percentage Held in the Controlling Interest

When the percentage of equity held by the controlling interest is changed, the Bank shall adjust the amounts recorded for the
conrrolling and non-controlling interests until the changes in their respective interests in the subsidiary are reflecred, The
Bank shall recognize directly in the parent company's equity any difference between the amount of the non-conirolling

interest adjustment and the fair value of the cash consideration paid or received.

A /1/3 Exclusion of Subsidiaries

When the Bank loses control, the Bank shall recognize any remaining investments in the subsidiaries that were at fair value
on the date that control ceases and any difference shall be recognized as profit or loss attributable to owners of the parent

cornpany.

11~
1 - Internal Financial Control FRU




ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT — S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

3-  Summary of accounting policies
A /1/4 Measurement Period
- The measurement period shall be the period required for the Bank to obtain all information required for the initial
measurement of the items resulting from the acquisition of the subsidiary. The measurement period shall not exceed (12)
twelve months as from the date of acquisition. In the event that the Bank obtains new information during the measurement
period relating to the acquisition, the adjustment shall be made retroactively to the amounts recognized at the date of

acquisition and the recognized goodwill shall be adjusted at the date of acquisition.

A/1/5 Basis of consolidation

- Thefollowingare the Egyptian Subsidiaries whose business has been consalidated with the financial statements of ADIB

Ownership % (Direct
Compasny & lndivecs) The Company Activiry
Abu Dhabi Islamic Properties - ADIB Properties 44.24% Real estate investment
Assnm Agricul I Develop pany 58.99% Aggriculwral
Cairo National fer Invesimen & Securities 734.45% Financial Invesiment
Abu Dhabe islamic for Finance - ADIFinance 99.40% Financial Leasing
Abu Dhabi Holding for financial investments - ADIR Holding 99.93% Establishung Companies
Abu Dhab Islamic Capital 1o promote and cover the subscription of securities- ADIB Capinal B9.96% Promoting subscription of Securnies
Abu Dhabi Islamic - Egypt for Micro financing ‘Arzaq’ 99.92% Financing Medium, small. Micro
Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank for € Fi - ADI G 99.97% Consumer Financing
Abu Dhabi Islamic for Taskeek - ADI Taskeek 88.92% Securimes
MNanonal company for wading and development (ENTAD) 72.16% Commercial

- Upon consolidation, unrealized ransactions, balances and gains arising from intra-group transactions shall be exduded. Any
unrealized losses shall not be excluded unless providing an evidence of impairment in the asset ransferred. The accounting

policies of the subsidiaries shall be changed as necessary to ensure uniform palicies of ADIB.

A/1/6 Transactions with Minority Shareholders

ADIB treats transactions with minority shareholders as ransactions with parties outside ADIB. Gains and losses arising from sale w
minority interests shall be recognized in the income statement. Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill that shall be
recognized as the difference between the paid consideration to the acquired shares and the book value for the net assets of the

Subsidiary.

A /2 Associates Companies
Associate Companies are all companies in which the Group has significant influence without extension to control. Generally, this case

shall be applied when ADIB directly or indirectly owns berween 20% and 50% of the voting rights of the associate company.

A/2/1 Equity Method

Equity methad is used to accounting for investments in associate companies so that the investment shall be recognized at the cost of
acquisition. Such cost shall be adjusted to the date of acquisition, which occurs during the subsequent period of acquisiton from a
change in ADIB's share in the net assets of the associate companies. The profit or loss for the bank shall include ADIB's share in profic
or loss of the associate company. The other comprehensive income statement shall include ADIB's share in the other comprehensive
incomne of the associate company, in retuen for adjusting the book value of the investment by the total share of the Bank in the changes

in equity after the date of acquisition.

-12-
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT — S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

A/2/2 Changes in Equity
If the Bank's equity in a subsidiary is impaired, bur with remaining the significantinfluence, the consideration for impairment shall be
reclassified with impairment ratio in the amount of gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or loss

as a result of disposal of the related assers or liabilities.

A/2/3 Losses of Associates

If the Bank's share in the losses of its associates exceeds its share in those companies or is equal thereto, the Bank shall cease to
recognize the balance of the additional losses. After the Bank's share is reduced to zero, the excess losses shall be recognized as a liability
1o the statement of financial position but only to the extent that the Bank incurs as legal or estimated obligations. When such companies
make profits in subsequent periods, the Bank shall resume recognition of its share in such profits but after its share of profits equals its

share of the losses that are not recognized.

A/2/4 Transactions with Associate Companies
Profits and losses arising from cross-transactions shall be recognized (upward and downward) between the Bank (including its
subsidiaries) and the associate company within the limits of the profits of other investors in the associate who have no relationship

with the Bank.

A/3 Inventory
Inventory items shall be evaluated as follows:

Inventaries of raw materials, spare parts, packaging materials, fuel, oils and equipment inventory: on cost basis (weighted average

method) or net realizable value, which is lower.

Finished production inventories: an industrial cost basis as per the cost lists ar net reafizable value, whichever is lower.

Cost shall include direct materials, directlabour and a share of indirect industrial costs and shafl notinclude the cost of borrowing.

Production inventory under operation: based on the industrial cost of the last stage completed according o the cost lists.

Net realizable value: it is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated cost necessary to complete the sale.

Adecrease in the value of inventory shall be recognized in net sate value and all inventory losses shall be included in the cost of sales
in the statement of income in the period in which the decline or loss accurs. The decrease reimburses in inventories resulting from the
increase in net sale value shall be recognized in the statement of income as a reduction of the cost of sales in the period in which the
reimburse occurs.

A/4 Real Estate Investment

Profits or losses arising from changes in the fair value of real estate investment shall be recognized as profit or loss for the period in

which they arise.

The fair value of the real estate investrnent is the exchange value of particular assets, whose parties have willingness to exchange, are
aware of the facts and deal with a free will. This estimation of fair value in particular shall notinclude an estimated inflation or deflation
price under special conditions or certain cases such as extraordinary financing, special arrangements by selling with the proceeds of

the lease, the special amounts or privileges granted by any party invalved in the sale process.

The entity shall determine the fair value without making any deduction for transaction costs that the entity may incur in the sale or

other disposal.

13-
C1 - Internal Financial Control FRU



ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT — S.A.E
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For the year ended 31 December 2025

A/5 Projects under construction
The projects under constructions shall be represented in the amounts that were expended for the purpose of establishing or purchasing
fixed assets until being ready for use in the operation. Then, subsequently transferred to the fixed assets items and the projects under

construction shall be estimated at cost after deduction of impairment.
(B) Operating Sectors

The operaling sectors participating in ADIB's business activities are reported in line with the internal reports submitted to ADIB's
department Chief Operating Decision Maker, considering thar the management represented in the Board of Directors, the Executive
Management and the relevant committees / or its designee at the foreign branches is responsible for making operational decisions about

the resaurces to be allocated to the operating sectors and assessing their performance.

(C) Sectors reporting

An activity sectar is a group of assets and processes associated with the provision of products or services thar are characterized by risks
and benefits and differ from those of other sectors of activity. The geographical sector is engaged in the provision of products or services
within a single econamic environment with risks and benefits that are related to geographical sectors operating in a different economic
environment.

ADIB s divided into two main sectors: Corporate Banking Services and Retail Banking for Individuals. In addition, the Corporate Centre
is a central funding department for ADIB's core business. For the dealings of the department of transactions, investment activity and other
non-core activities, they are reported within the Corporate Banking Services

For the purpose of sectors reporting in accordance with the classification of geographic regions, the Sector’s profits, losses, assets and
liabilities are presented on a basis of branches’ locations.

Based on the fact that ADIB (ADIB - Egypt) does not have an entity to register abroad, the sectors report present, unless otherwise stated
in a certain disclosure, all ADIB's invesiments in equity instruments and debt instruments issued by foreign institutions, as well as, credit

facilities granted by ADIB to foreign parties based an the location of the local branch in which such assets are registered.
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(D) Foreign currency translation

D/4 Functional and preseatation currency

The financial statements of ADIB are presented using the currency of the primary economic environment in which ADIB exercises its
business (the functional currency). ADIB's finandial statements are presented in Egyptian pounds, which is ADIB's functional and

presentation currency.

D/2 Transactions and balances in foreign currencies

ADIB keeps its accounting records in Egyptian pound. Foreign currency transactions during the financial period / year are translated using
the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities balances in foreign currencies at the end of
the financial year are re-translated based on the exchange rates prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from

setdement of such transaciions and wanslation differences are recognized in the statement of profit and loss under the following items:

® Nettradingincome or netincome from financial instruments classified at fair value through profit orloss for trading assets / fiabilities
or those classified at fair value through profit or loss based on classification of the asset or liability.

® Within other comprehensive income items of equity with regard to Islamic futures exchange contracts / Islamic currency swap
contracts as qualifying hedge (eligible} for cash flows or as qualifying hedge for netinvestment.

® Within other comprehensive income items of equity for financial investments of equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

®  Other operating incame (expenses) for the remaining items

Changes in the fair value of monetary financial instruments in foreign currency classified as investments at fair value are analyzed within
the other comprehensive income through differences from changes in amortized costs of the instrument, differences from changesin the
prevailing exchange rates, and differences from changes in the fair value of the instrument. Differences related 1o changes in the
amorntized cost are recognized into statement of profit and loss under funds and similar revenues, and those related to the changes in the
exchange rates under other operating income (expenses). Differences from changes in the fair value (fair value reserve/ financial
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income) are recagnized within equity of comprehensive income items.

Valuation differences result from non-cash items include profit and loss fram change in fair value such as equity instruments ac fair value
through profit and loss. Valuation differences result from equity instruments classified as financial investments at fair value through

comprehensive income statement are recognized in statement of other comprehensive income.
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E) Financial assets and financial liabilities

E/1. Initial recognition and measurement

ADIB conducts initial recognition of financial assets and liabilities on the date an which ADIB becomes a party to the contractual

conditions of financial instrument.

The financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair value. With regard to asset or liability thatis not subsequently measured at fair

value through profit and loss, it would be measured ar fair value plus cost of transaction that is connected directly with acquisition or

issuance.
E/2. Classification
Financial assets
®  Upon initial recognition, ADIB classifies the financial asses into financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at fair value
through statement of other comprehensive income or ar fair value through profit and loss.
®  The financial assetis measured at amortized cost upon fulfilment of the following two conditions and when it has not been allocated
by Bank’s management upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss:
- The financial asset is held within a business model whose purpose is to hold financial asset to collect contractual cash flows.
- The contractual conditions of financial asset result, on specific dates, in contractual cash flows for the asset and is represented only in the
principal amount of the financial instrument and the Profit.
®  Thefinancial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income upon fulfilment of the following two conditions
and when it has not been allocated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit and loss:
- Thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose purpose is to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial asset.
- The contractuat conditions of financial asset resuls, on specific dates, in contractual cash flows for the asset and is not represent only in the
principal debs and the Profic.
®  Upon initial recognition of an equity instrument not held for trading, ADIB can take irrevocable option to present subsequent
changes in fair value through statement of other comprehensive income. Such option is adopted for each investment individually.
®  Other outstanding financial assets are classified as financial investments at fair value through profit and loss.
®  Furthermore, ADIB may, upen initial recognition, irrevocably allocate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profic or

loss despite of fulfilling the conditions of classifying as financial asser at amortized cost or fair value through statement of other

comprehensive income, if so materially prevents or reduces the conflict thar may arise in accounting measurement.

16
C1 - Internal Financial Control FRU



ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Business model valuation

1) Debt instruments and equity instruments are classified and measured as follows:

Methad of measurement as per the business medel

Inscrument Fair value through other comprehensive income
Amortised cost
Through comprehensive income Through profit or loss
Equity One-time option upon initial recognition Normal transaction for equity
instruments Irrevacable instruments

Debt instruments

flows

Business model of assets held

to collect contractual cash

Business madel of assets held to collect Business madel of assets held

contractual cash flows and sate for trading

2) ADIB prepares, documents and approves Business Model(s) in compliance with [FRS 9 requirements ta reflect ADIB's strategy made

for managing financial assets and its cash flows as foflows:

Financial asset

Business model

Principal characteristics

Financial assets at

amortised cost

Business modef of
financial assets held to
collect contractual

cash flows

% The objective of the business model is to retain financial assets to collect the
contractual cash flows represented in the principal amount of the investment

and the Profits.

A sale is an exceptional contingent event for the purpose of this model and
under the terms of the Standard comprising deterioration in the

creditworthiness of the issuer of the financiaf insirument.

Lowest sales in terms of periodic and value.

Aclear and reliable documentation process for the justifications of each sale
and its conformity with the requirements of the Standard are conducted by
ADIB.

Financial assets at fair
value through other

comprehensive income

Business model
Business model of
financial assets held o
collect contractual

cash flows and sale

Both the collection of contractual cash flows and sale are complementary to

the objective of the model.

High sales {in terms of rurnover and value) com pared to the business model

held for the collection of contractual cash flows

Financial assets at fair
value through profit and

loss

Other business
models, which include
(vrading -
management of
financial assets based
on fair value -

maximising cash flows

through sale}

¥ The objective of the business model is not to hold the financial asset for the
collection of contractal cash flows or hold the financial asset to collect

contractual cash flows and sale.

The collection of contractual cash flows is a contingent event for the objective
of the model.
® Management of financial assets by the management at fair value through

profit and loss to avoid accounting inconsistencies.
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® ADIB evaluates the purpose of business model at the level of portfolio in which the financial assetis held to reflect the method of
management and supplying information. Such information, which is taken into consideration when evaluating the business model,

includes the following:

- Documented approved policies and portfolio’s objectives and application of such policies in the real wortd. In particular, whether
the managerment’s sirategy focuses only upon collection of contractual cash flows and halding a definite Profit rate to compare

maturity dates of financial assets with maturity dates of liabilities that fund such assets or generates cash flows from sale of assets.
- Way of evaluating and reporting on portfolio’s performance to senior management.

- Risks that affect business model performance including nature of financial assets hetd in such model and the way of managing such

risks.
- Way of evaluating the performance of business managers (fair value and/or Profit on portfolio).

- Periodic, value and date of sale rransactions in previous periods, reasons of such transactions, and forecasts regarding future sale
aciivities. However, information regarding sale activities is not taken into consideration separately but as a part of a whole

comprehensive valuation of how ta achieve ADIB's objective from managing the financial assets and how o generare cash flows.

® Thefinancial assets held forrading, or managed and its performance valued on basis of fair value are measured at fair value through
profit and loss since they are not held to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flaws and sell financial assets

together.

® Valuation of whether the contractual cash flows of an asset represent payments restricted upon principal amount of

instrument and Profic

- For purpose of this valuation, ADIB identifies the principal amount of financial instrument as the fair value of financial asser upan
initial recognition. Further, ADIB identifies the Profit as time value for money and credit risks related to the principal amount during

specific period and other main finance risks and costs (such as liquidity risks and administrative costs) in addition to profie margin,

- in order to evaluate whether the contractual cash flows of the asset are represented in payments restricted upon the principal of
financial instrument and Profit, ADIB takes into its consideration the contractual conditions of the instrument. This includes
valuation of whether the financial assetincludes contractual conditions that may change date or amount of contractual cash flows

which resultin breach of this condition. In order to carry out such valuation, ADIB takes into consideration the following martters:
- Potential events that may change the amount or date of cash flows.
- Specifications of financial leverage (Profit rate, terms, currency type ...).
- Terms of accelerated payment and term extension.
- Terms that may limit ADIB’s ability to claim cash flows from certain assets.

- Specifications thar may be amended for time value of cash (periodically repricing Profit rare).
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Financial liabilities

® Upoeninitial recognition, ADIB classifies financial liabilities into financial liabilities at amontised cost and financial liabilities at fair

value through profit and loss according 1o purpose of bank’s business model.

All financial liabilities at fair value are initially recognised on the date when ADIB becomes party to contractual conditions of
financial instrument.

Classified financial liabilities are subsequently measured ar amortised cost based on amortised cast by using effective Profit rate.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently measured at fair value and change in fair value related
to change in credit rating degree of ADIB is recognised in statement of other comprehensive income whilst the outstanding

amount from change in fair value is presented in profit and loss.

Reclassification

The financial assets are reclassified upon initial recognition only if ADIB changes business model of managing such assets.
In all cases, reclassification between financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss and financial liabilities at amortised

cost are not conducted.

E/3. Exclusion

1-

Financial assets

The financial asset is excluded when the effective period of contractual right te abtain cash flows from financial asset expires or
ADIB transfers the right to receive contractual cash flows in a ransaction wherehy the risks and benefits associated materially
with ownership are transferred to another party.

wWhen a financial asset is excluded, difference between asser’s book value (or book value allocated to part of the excluded
principal) and total of received consideration (including any new asset obained less any new commitment incurred} and any
consalidated profit and loss has been previousty recognised in the fair value reserve of financial investments at fair value through
statement of other comprehensive income is recognised in statement of profis and loss.

As of 1 January 2019, any accumulated profix or loss recognised in starement of other comprehensive income related to investing
in equity insoruments allocated as investments at fair value through statement of other comprehensive income are not recognised
in profit and loss upon disposal of such asset. Anry share resulted or held from the asset qualified for disposal (eligible for disposal)
is recognised as separate asset or liability.

When ADIB makes transactions whereby it transfers assets thar have been previously recognised in statement of financial
position, but materially held most of risks and benefits associated with the transferred asset or part of it. In such cases, the
transferred asset is not excluded.

In respect of transactions in which ADIB does not materially hold or ransfer all risks and benefits associated with asset ownership
and hold conrrol over the asset, ADIB continues to recognise the asset within the limitation of its continuous commitment to
financial asse. The continuous commitment of ADIB to the financial asset is derermined based an ADIB's exposure to the changes
in the value of ransferred asset.

In some transactions, ADIB halds the commiument to provide transferred asset in return for commission. Thereupon, the
transferred asset is excluded if it meets the exclusion conditions. An asset er liability to provide service is recognised if the service

commission is higher than the appropriate amount (asset) or less than the appropriate amount (liability) to perform the service.
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2- Financial liabilities

ADIB excludes financial liabilities when the financial liability is disposed of or cancelled or its term set forth in the contract expires.

E/4. Adjustments to financial assets and financial liabilities

1.

Financial assers

If the terms of a financial asset are amended, ADIB evaluates whether the cash flows of adjusted asset are materially different. If
the cash flows materially differ, the contractual rights of cash flows from the original financial asset are considered expired and
hence the original financial asser is excluded and the new financial asset is recognised at fair value and the value resulting from
adjusting aggregate book value is recognised as profits or losses under profits and losses. On the other hand, if such adjustment has
occurred due to financial difficulties of the borrower, the profits have to be deferred and presented with aggregate impairment

tosses whilst losses have to be recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

If the cash flows of adjusted asser recognised ar amortised cost do not materially differ, the adjustment will not result in the

exclusion of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities
ADIB may adjust a financial liability when its terms are amended and the cash flows of adjusted fiability will materially differ. In
such case, a new financial asset is recognised according to the amended terms at fair value. The difference berween book value of

old financial liability and new financial liability is recagnised in accordance with amended terms in the profitand loss.

F) Offseuing financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to sertle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

An offset is made only between revenues and expenses, if permimed in accordance with the amended Egyptian Accounting
Standards, or profit or loss result from similar groups because of trading activity or the result of translation differences of the
balances of assets and liabilities of monetary nature into foreign currency or the result of profits (lasses) from foreign currency

operations.

G} Measurement of fair value

ADIBsets the fair value on basis that it is the price that will be absained for the sale of an asset or will be paid for transfer of a liability
in atransaction made berween che participants in the market on measurement date taking specifications of the asset or liability into
consideration when measuring the fair value if she participants in the market took such specifications into cansideration when
pricing the asset and/or liability on measurement date as such specifications include status and position of the asset and restrictions

upon sale or use of the asset as per the perspective of participants in the market.
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ADIB uses market methodology ta determine fair value of financial assets and liabilities as such methodology uses other relevant
prices and information result from market transactions that include assets or liabilities of set of assets and liabilities and are typical
or comparable. Accordingly, ADIB uses valuation methods that are in consistent with market methodology such as market
multiples derived from comparable sets. Thereupon, itis required to opt for the appropriate multiplier within range using personal

judgement taking into consideration both quantitative and qualitative factors of the measurement.

When it cannot be relied upon the marker approach to determine the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability, ADIB uses
the income approach to determine fair value whereby future payments such as cash flow or income and expenses are transferred

to current amount (discounted) so that the fair value measurement reflects current market expectations about future payments.

When it cannot be relied upen market approach or income approach to determine the fair vatue of a financial asset or financial
liability, ADIB uses the cost methed to determine fair value in order to reflect the amount currently dlaimed to replace the assetin
its current state (the current replacement cost) so that the fair value reflects the cost incurred by the participant in the market as
abuyer of acquiring an alternative asset of similar benefits since the participant in the market as a buyer will not pay for an asset
more than the amount that replaces benefit of the asset.

The measurernent method of financial assets and liabilities at fair value are set below in the financial statements within the

hierarchy of the fair value, based on the input levels that are considered to be significant to the fair value measurement as a whale

Level 1 - Inputs of quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, which ADIB can have access to at

the date of measurement.

Levet 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asser or liability, either directly or

indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs of the asset or the liabiliry.

The following table shows the change in the measurement methods of the fair value of financial assets at 31 December 2025,

compared ro the comparative figures at 31 December 2024

EGP {in thousands}

31 Becember 2025 Level One Level Two Level Three Total
Financial indebti 16885824 5,299,244 - 22,185,068
Mutual funds cerrificates - - 175,096 175096
Equity Insteuments 16,087 - 387,578 403,645
31 December 2024 Leve! One Level Two Level Three Taral
Finandial investments in debt instruments 1870692 5159651 - 2,490,373
Murual funds centificates - 5 143,686 143,606
Equity instruments 14924 - 400959 415,803
21
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{G/1) Financial instruments at level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on gquated prices ar the date of statement of financial
statements. The market is deemed active when the items in the marker are similar and there are usual buyers and sellers wiliing to
deal atanytime normally. ADIB has used the declared quoted price to determine she fair value of this level. The instruments included

in Levef 1 comprise investments held for rrading in the stock exchanges.

{G/2) Financial instruments at level 2

The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques depend on the use of observable inputs of the asset or the liability directly or indirectly. The fair value method
is included in the second level if all significant inputs are observable throughout the period of the financial asset or liability. I an

impostant input is not observable, the financial instrument will be included in the third level,

Specific valuation techniques used to determine fair values of financial inseruments include:
® Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
®  Profit rate swaps by caleulating the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable Profit curves.

®  The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using the current value of the expected cash flows by using

the future foreign exchange of the currency of contract.

¢  Analysis of deducted cash flows to determine fair values of other financial instruments.

H) Profit income and expenses

- Profitincome and expense for all Profit-bearing financial instruments, except for those classified as held for trading or designated
initially at fair value through profit and loss, are recagnised in the staterent of profit and loss within *Profit of similar funds and
revenues’ using the effective Profit method.

- According to the effective Profit rate method, the amortised cost of an asset or financial liability is calculated and allocation of
income revenues or expenses Profit is distributed throughout the life of related instrument. The effective Profit rate represents
the rate used te discount future cash flows expected to be paid or collected during the expecred life of the financial instrument,
or less time if appropriate in order to accurately determine the book value of an asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective Profit rate, ADIB estimates cash flows considering all contractual resms of the financial instrument (for example, earty
payment optians) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation indudes all fees paid or received berween parties to
the contract that are considered as part of the effective Profit rate. Also, the transaction cost incdludes any premiums or discounts.

- When funds or receivables are classified as impaired funds and debts, the related Profit income is not recognised but is rather
carried off the financial statements in marginal records and is recognised under revenues according to cash basis as per the
following;

® When they are collected, after receiving all past due instafments for consumption and real estate funds for personal housing and
small funds for economic activities.

® Far corporate funds, cash basis is also applied, where the Profit subsequently calculated is given in accordance with the fund
scheduling contract, until 25% of the scheduling instalments are repaid and with a minimum of one year of regular repayment.
In case the customer continues to make payments on a regufar basis, the Profit calculared on the fund outstanding is recognised
in revenues (Profit on regular scheduling balance) without marginal Profit before scheduling which is not recognised as revenues
except after paying all the fund balance in the balance sheet before scheduling.

1) Feesand commission income
- Fees that are due for a banking process or fund service or a facility are recognised as revenues when the service is rendered. The

recognition of the fees and commissions income related to impaired funds or debts is suspended and they are carried in marginal
records off the balance sheet and are recognised under revenues according 1o the eash basis when Profit income is recognised
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)

L

U]
2)
3)
4)

Fees that generally represent a complementing part of the financial asset effective rate are recognised as adjustment to the
effecrive Profit rate.

Commitment fees on funds are deferred when there is probability that funds will be used, as the commitment fees received by
ADIB represent compensation for the continuous interference to acquire the financtal instrument. Subsequently, it is recognised
as adjustment to the effective Profit rate on funds. If the commitment period passes without issuing the fund, the commitment
fees are recognised as income at the end of the commitment period. If there is no probability that these funds are used, the
commitment fees are recognized on the basis of the relative time distribution over the period of the commitment.

Fees related o Financing instruments measured at its fair value are recognised as income at initial recognition. Fees related ro
marketing of syndicated funds are recognised as income when the marketing process is completed and the fundis fully used or if
ADIB kept its share of the syndicated funds using the effective Profit rate as used by the other participants.

Fees and commissions arising from negotiation or participating in negotiation over a transaction in favour of another party -such
as arrangement to buy shares ar other financial instruments or acquire or sell enrities, are recognised in statement of profit and
loss upon the completion of the concerned transaction. Fees of management consultation and other services are usually
recognised on a time-apportion basis over the period of performing the service. Financial planning and custody services fees
provided on fong periods are recognised over the period in which the service is provided.

Dividends income
Dividends on ADIB's investments in equity instruments and its equivalents are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

when the right to collect them is established.

Purchase and resale agreements & sale and repurchase agreements
Sold financial instruments under repurchase agreements are presented within assets in the treasury bills and other government
securities line itemn in the finandal position. Differences between the sale and repurchase price are recognised as due Profic

throughout the period of the agreements using the effective Profit rate method.

Impairment of financial assees

Impairment {osses from expected credit loss of subsequent financial instruments that are not measured at fair value are
recagnised through profit and loss, which are:

Financial assers represent debt instruments.

Qurstanding debts.

Financial guarantee contracts.

Commitments of funds and similar debt instruments.

Impairment losses are not recagaised in investments value of equity instruments.
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¥ Debtinstruments selated to retail banking products and small and micro sized enterprises

1) ADIB consclidates debt instruments related to retail banking products and small and micro enterprises on the basis of groups
with similar credit risk based on the type of banking product

2) ADIB classifies debt instruments within the retail banking product group or small and micro enterprises into three stages based

on the following quantitative and qualitative criteria:

Classifying the Stage 1 Srage 2 Stage 3
financial
instrument
Main identifier Addirional Main identifier Additional identifier Main identifier Additional
{Quantitative identifier {Quantitative (Qualicarive criteda) {Quantitative identifier
criteria) (%l:;lit::i)ve criteria) criteria) (Qualitative
criteria)
Low credit risk Mo past dues Fall under
financial acceprable risk
Hstruments
Finandial Past due for more If the borrower erl:mfnlers one
S———— than 30 days from or more of the following events
whicha the date of the eleasg
substantial marurity of - The borrower submits a
increase in credit contracual request to convert short-
risk eccurred instalments. term and long-term
repayments due to negative
effects related to the
borrower's cash flows.
= (Cancellation of a direct
facility by ADIB due to the
borrower’s high credit risk.
- Bxension of the deadline
for repayment arthe
borrower's reguest.
- Pastdues are frequent
during the past 12 months.
- Future adverse economic /
legislative / technologicai
changes affecting the furure
cash flows of the borrower
tmpaired financial If the borrower N/A
instruments defaults for more
than 90 days to pay
its conwactual
instalments
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1

2

ot

Debt instruments related to medium enterprises

ADIB consolidates debt instruments relating to medium enterprises an the basis of similar credit risk groups depending on

horrowing client unit (ORR).

)} ADIB classifies customers within each group into three stages based on the following quantitative and gualitative criteria:
Classification Scage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
of the financial
instrument
Main Additioral Main Additional idemifier Main identifi Addirional
identifier identifier identiffer {Qualitarive criteriz) {Quanritarive identifier
(Quantirative (Qualizative (Quantirative criveria) {Qualitative
criteria) criteria) criteria) ciiteria}
Low creditrisk | Mo past dues Falt under
financial acceptable risk
instruments
:::sltar::laelntson ::OS::;:‘?;U If the borrower is on the watch list and/ or the
whicha days from the financial instrument encounters at least one
substantial date of or more of the following events:
increase in maturiey ofthe | _ 4 significant increase in the Profit rate on
credie risk conractuat the financial asset as a result of increased
occumved instalments, credit risk

Significant adverse changes in the activity
and financial or economic conditiens in
which the borrower operates.

Request of rescheduding,

Significant adverse changes in accual or
expeaed operating results or cash flows.
Future adverse economic changes affecting
the borrower's future cash flows.

Early shgns of cash flow/ ligqusdity problems
such as delays in servicing creditors / trade
funds,
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® Debtinstruments related to medium enterprises

Classification of Stage 1 Stage 2 Srage 3
the financiat
instrument
Main identifier Addirional Main identifier Addisional identifies Main identifier Additional identifier
{Quantitative identifier (Quanriarive {Qualitative criteria) (Quantitative criteria) {Qualirative ceiteria)
exireria) (Qualitative criteria)
criteria)

Impaired financial
instruments

If the borrower defaults
for more than 90 days to
pay its comracrual
instalments

When the bomawer fails to
meet one or more of the
following criteria,
indicating that the
borrower is facing
significant financial
difficulty,

- The death o disability of the
barrower

- The borrower defaults
financially

- Initiate schedufing as a
result of the deteriorarion
of the borrower's
creditworthiness,

- Failure o comply with
financial commitrments.

» The disappearance of the
active market of the
financial asset or one of
the finandal instruments
of the borrower due to
financial difficulties.

- Granting financiers
privileges related 1o the
bormower's financial
difficutry, which would
not have been granted
under normal
circumistances.

- The borrawer may be in
bankruptcy or
restructuring due to
finandat difficulties.

«Ifthe borrower’s financial
assets Are acquired ata
significant discount that
reflects the credit losses
incurred.

- Financial assets that are created or acquired by ADIB and include a high rate of credit risk will be classified as ADIB's low-risk

financial assets at the initial recagnition of stage 2 directly
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Measurement of expected credit losses

ADIB evaluates the portfolios of Financing instruments on a quarterly basis ar the portfoiio level for all financial assets of
individuals, institutions, SME and micro-enterprises, and on a periodic basis with respect to the financial assews of institutions
classified within the watch list for the purpose of monitoring the credit risk related thereto. This evaluation is made periodically
at the level of the counterparty. Criteria used are periodically reviewed and monitored to determine the significant increase in
eredit risk by the credit risk department.

At the date of the financial statements, ADIB estimates the impairment loss for financial instruments at a value equal to the
expected credit losses over the life of the financial instrument except for the following cases where the provision for impairment
losses is estimated at a value equal to the expected credit losses over the {12) twelve meonths:

AFinancinginstrument that has been identified as having low credit risk at the financial starements date (debt instruments in the
stage (1)).

Other financial instruments whose credit risk at the reporting date has not increased significantly since the initial recognition
{debr instruments in the stage (1)).

ADIB considers the expected credit losses to be a probability-weighted estimare of the expected credit losses, which are measured
as follows:

The expected credit losses on financial assets are measured at the stage (1) based on the present value of the total cash deficit
calculated on the basis of the historical probability of default scenarios, which are adjusted according to the average forecasts of
the scenarios of macroeconomic indicators for the future (12) twelve months multiplied by the value at default, taking into
account the expected recovery rates upon caleulating the loss rate for each group of debt instruments with similar credit risk. As
expected credit losses take into account the amount and timing of payments, the credit losses arise even if the enterprise expects
full repayment but later an after the debt becomes payable under cantractual terms. The expected credit losses over (12) rwelve-
month period will be deemed a part of the expected credit losses over the life of the asset which result fror defaults on a financial
instrument within (12} twelve months after the date of the financial statements.

The expected credit losses on financial assets are measured at the stage (2) based on the present value of the toral cash deficit
calculated on the basis of the historical probability of default scenarios and adjusted by the average forecasts of macroeconomic
indicators far the life of the financial asset mulriplied by the value at default, taking into account the expected recovery rates upon
calculating the loss rate for each group of debt instruments with similar credit risk.

Impaired financial assets at the financial statements date are measured as the difference between the total book value of the asset
and the present value of the expected future cash flows.

Upon calculating loss rates, ADIB calculates the expected recovery rates from the present value af the expected cash flows either
from cash and in kind collateral; or historical or expected future payment rates as follows:

For debt insruments classified in stage (1), itis taken into account the value of cash collateral and equivalents representedin cash
and other financial instruments that may be easily converted into cash within ashort period of time (3 months orless) and without
any change (loss) in value as a result of credit risk after deducring 10% for the unexpected circumstances.

For the debt instruments dassified in the stages (2) and (3), only the types of guarantees will be considered in accordance with
the rules issued by the (CBE) dated 24/5/2005 regarding the determination of the creditworthiness of the customers and
formation of the provisions, while the value of such guarantees will be calculated according to the rules of preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the banks, the recognition and measurement bases issued by the (CBE) dated 16 December
2008, after deducting 10% and 20% of the cash collateral and the present value of the future cash flows of the in-kind collateral,
respectively.

For Financing inssruments held by banks operating outside Egype, the probability rates of defaule are determined on the basis of
the credit rating of the headquarters of ADIB operating outside of Egypt in no more than the credit rating of the country of the
headquarters, taking into consideration the instructions issued by the Central Bank of Egypt on the risks of countries. The loss rate
is calculated at 45%.

Measurement of expected credit losses

As for the instruments held by the banks operating inside Egyp, the probability of default is calculated on the basis of ADIB's
dlassification by the external international rating institutions. The branches of the Egyptian banks abroad will be treated as the
headquarters. The branches of

the foreign banks operatingin Egypt will be treated as their headquarters, and the loss rate is calculated at 45%.
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- ForFinancinginstruments issued by entities other than the banks, the probability of default is calculated on the basis of the rating
of the issuing entity for the financial instrument by the external international rating institutions in no more than the credit rating
of the issuing countryin the case of external entities and the loss rate is calculated ar 45%.

- The impairment provision for financial assets recagnised in the financial position is deducted from the carrying amount of the
financial assets at the time of the starement of financial position, while the provision for impairment relating to funds
commitments, financial guarantee contracts and contingent liabilities is recognised within other provisians for the liabilities in
the financial position.

- Forfinancial guarantee contracts, ADIB estimates the expected credit loss an the basis of the difference between the payments

expected to be made to the guarantee holder less any other amounts that ADIB expects to recover.
Transition from Stage 2 to Stage 1

- ADIB does not transfer the financial asset from stage (2} to stage (1) unless afl the quantizative and qualitative elements of the
stage (1) have been fulfilled and the total cash receipis from the financial asset are equal to or greater than the total amount of
the instalments due to the financial asset, if any, and the due proceeds and (3) three consecutive months pass when the

requirements are fulfilied.

Transition from Stage 3 ro Stage 2

- ADIB does not transfer the financial asset from stage (3) to stage (2) - including the schedufing - except after fulfilling ail the

following conditions:

1) Fulfilling all quantitative and qualitative efernents of Stage 2.
2) Repayment of 25% of the balances of the outstanding financial assets, induding the set aside/ marginal ised due Profit, as the case
may be.

3) Regularity in paying the principal amount of the financial asset and its due Profit for at feast 12 continuous months.
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Restructured financial assets:

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified; or a new financial asset is replaced by a current finandial asset due
to the financial difficulties of the borrower, an assessment is made as to whether the financial asset will be excluded and the

expected credit losses will be measured as follows:

i restructuring does not result in the exclusion of the current asset, the expected cash flows from the adjusted financial asser will
be used upon calculating the cash deficit in the current asset. The expected credit losses are calculated aver the life of the
instrement.

I restructuring results in exclusion of the current asset, the expected fair value of the new asset will be deemed as final cash flows
from the current financial asset upon exclusion. This value will be used to calculate the cash deficit from the current financial
asset, which is deducted from the expected date of the asset exclusion at the financial statements dare using the original effective

Profit rate of the current financial asset.

Preseatation of the expected credic losses provisions in the statement of financial position

The provision for expected credit losses is presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

Financial assets measured at amortized cost as a deduction fram the toral book value of the assets.

Financial commitments and financial guarantee contracts as a provision in general.

When the financial inscrumentincludes both the used and unused permissible limit of the instrument and ADIB cannot determine
the expected credit losses of the unused portion separately, ADIB presents a provision for the loss of the used and unused portion,
and the aggregate amount will be presented as a deduction from the total bock value for the used portion. Any increase in the
loss provision is presented on the total amount of the used portion as a provision of the unused portion.

A provision fer impairment of Financing instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income is not recognized in the
statement of finandial position because the book value of such assets is their fair value. However, the provision for impairment s

disclosed and recognized in the fair value reserve.

Debts write-off

Debts are written off (in part or in whole) when there is no realistic possibilicy of repayment of the debt, However, for Covered
Cards When they are 180 Days Due. Generally, when ADIB determines that the borrower does not have the assets, resources or
sources of income that may generate sufficient cash flows ro repay the debts that will be written off; however, the impaired
financial assets may cantinue to be subject to follow-up in light of ADIB's procedures to recover the due amounts. The deduction
is charged to the impairment provision account for debrs writen off, whether or not they have provision, and any collections for

previously written off funds will be added to the provision of impairment.
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M} Intangible assers
M/1 Computer Software

~ Expenditure on upgrading and maintenance of computer software is recognized as an expense in the staterment of profit and loss
in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditures directly incurred in connection with specific software are recognized as
intangible assets if they are controlled by ADIB and when it is probable that they will generate future economic benefits that
exceed its cos¢ within more than one year. Direat costs also include the cost of the staff involved in upgrading the software in

addition to areasanable portion of relative overheads.

— The expenses which lead to the increase or expansion in the performance of computer software beyond their original
specifications are recognised as a development cost and are added to the original software cost, when all the following conditions

are fulfilled:

ADIB has the intention and the ability to complete and use that software.

Development-related expenditures can be reliably measured.

= The computer software cost recognised as an asset is amortised over the expected useful life as follows:

Asset [ype Default Life / deprecation rare

Computer Software 3 years

M/ 2 Other intangible assers

= Otherintangible assets comprise all intangible assets other than goodwill and computer software.

— Other intangible assets are recognised at cost of acquisition and amortised on a straight-line basis or on the basis of expected
ecanomic benefits over the estimated useful fives. Assets that do not have a definite useful life are not amortised, but impairment

is tested annually and the impairment value (if any) is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

N) Fixed assets
Lands and buildings are primarily represented in head offices, branches and offices. All assets are presented ar historical cost [ess
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenses associated directly with acquiring fixed assets items,

- Subsequent Costs are recognised inthe asset’s carrying amaount or are re CDgI'IiSEd dasa separate asset, as appropriate, Oﬂly whenit
is probable thar future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow 1o the Bank and the cost can be measured reliably.
Maintenance and repair expenses are charged to other operating expenses during the period / year in which they are incurred.

= lands are not depreciated. Depreciation of ather fixed assets is calculated using the straight line methed to allocate their cost 1o

their residual values over their estimated useful fives, as follows:

Asset type Default Life / deprecation rate
Buildings 20 years
Decorations and fixtures 20 years
Integrated automation systems and equipment 5 years
Transportation 5 years
Furniture & instalments 10 years
Other equipment 10 years
Poriable devices / Maobiles 1 years
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0)

P}

Residual values and useful Jives of fixed assets are reviewed as at the date of financial statements and are adjusted, if necessary.
Depreciable Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in drcumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recovered. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable value if the asset’s carrying

amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s net selling amount and value in use, Profits and losses on dispasals from fixed
assets are determined by comparing net proceeds with carrying amount, Profits/ (losses) are included in other operating income
{expenses) in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that do not have definite life time are not depreciated and their impairment is reviewed annually. Impairment of
depreciated assess is examined when there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the book value may be

partially or wholly non-recoverable.

Impairment loss is recognised and the asset value is deducted at the amount by which the asset’s book value increases over the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount represents the higher of the asset’s net selling amount and value in use. For the
purpose of estimating impairment, the asset is grouped to the smallest possible cash generating unit. The non-financial assets are
reviewed for any impairment in erder 1o determine if impairment can be reversed 1o the stacement of profit and loss at the date

of each financial statement.

Leases

Finance Jeases are accounted for in accordance with Law 95 of 1995 concerning Finance Lease if the contract grants the right to
the lessee to purchase the asset on a specified date and art a specified value; and the contract periad represents at least 75 % of
the expected useful life of the asset, or the present value of the total lease payments represents at least 90% of the value of the

asset. Other leases are considered operating leases.

Finance lease contracts, lease costs including maintenance expense of leased assets are recognised under expenses in the
statement of profit and loss in the year / periad incurred. If the Bank decides to exercise the right to purchase the feased assets,
the cost of this right of purchase is capitalised as an asset within the fixed asset and depreciated over the assets' expected

remaining useful fife in the same way used with similar assets.

Payments made under operating |eases, less any discounts received from the lessor, are recognised as expense in the statement

of profit and loss on a straight-ine basis over the period of the lease.

For finance leased assets, the current value of the finance lease debt shall be recognized as a financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position in return for exclusion of the leased assets. The differences shall be listed the statement of profit
and loss in other operating revenues / expenses.

Where there is objective evidence that the Bank may not be able to collect all or part of the receivables of the finance lease, the
finance lease shall be reduced to the expected recovery value as if being the assets of the debt instruments. An impairment

peovision thereof shall be calculared in the same manner and methods used for debt instruments.

Operational leases shall be recognized as fixed assets in the statement of financial position and shall be amortized over the
estimated useful life of the asset in the same manner as for similar fixed assets. Lease revenues shall be recognized less any

deductions granted to the lessee on straight line method over the term of the contract in the statement of profitand foss.
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Q) Cash and cash equivalents

R)

5)

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include balances due within three months from che
date of acquisition, which includes cash and balances with central banks other than the statutoryreserve, and balances with banks

and other government notes.

Other provisions

Other provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the outflow required for sertlement is determined, taking into consideration the
group of obligations as a whole. The provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to an item in the

group is minimal.
Pravisions na longer required fully or partially are reversed in ather operating income (expenses).

The current value of payments to settfe the obligations that must be settled afier one year from the financial position date using
an appropriate rate in accordance with the terms of settlement, without being affected by the prevailing tax rate, which reflects
the time value of money. If the setlement term is fess than one year, the estimated value of the obligation is calculated unless ic

has a material impact; otherwise, it is calculated at the current value.

Commitments of financing and financial guarantee conracts

Financial guarantees represent contracts in which ADIB is the guarantor or the guarantor of financing or overdrafts (mudaraba)
towards other entities. This requires ADIB to make certain payments ta compensate the beneficiary for loss incurred due to defaul
of the debtorwhen payment s due in accordance with the tenns of the finandial instrument. These financial guarantees are given

to banks, financial institutions and other entities on behalf of ADIB's customers.

Commitments on financing are the commitments under which the Bank grants credit according to pre-determined terms and thus
guarantees include the unused partions of the credit limits granted within the amounts expected to be used by ADIB in the future.
The financial guarantee contracts and commitments of granting finance at Profit rates below the market price are initially
recognized in the financial starements at fair value on the date of granting the guarantee / commitment. The initially recognized

fair value is amartized over the life of the guarantee / commitment.

In subsequent measurement, ADIB's obligation under the guarantee / commitment is measured as follows:

The higher of the amortized value or the impairment lass value.
ADIB has not made any commitments during the period / year on finances measured at fair value through profic and loss.
For other commitments on finances: ADIB recognizes impairment losses.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantee contracts are recognized within provisions. Any excess of the liability arising from the
financial guarantee is recognized in the statement of profit and loss within other operating revenues (expenses) in the statement
of profit and loss.

The calculated provision for commitments for financingis recognized as part of the provision forimpairment of financing for each
debe, to the extent that it equals the value of financing, Any increase in the provision for commitment over finance is recognized

within provisions in the statement of financial position.
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T) Obligations of retirement benefits

T/1 Employees’ fund

~  Onthe 15t of July 2013, ADIB established a special social insurance fund {the Fund) under Law No. 54 of 1975, "Special Insurance
Funds and its Executive Regulations”. ADIB registered the Fund on 14 January 2014 and the Fund’s registration number with the
Financial Supervisory Authority is (884). The Fund's work began on the 1st of April 2014 and the terms of this Fund and its

amendments apply on all employees of the headquarters of ADIB and its branches in the Arab Republic of Egypt.

— ADIBisobliged to payto the Fund the contributions due for each month calculated in accordance with the regulatians of the Fund
and its amendments, however, there is no obligation on ADIB Egypt if the Fund is insufficient. The Fund is financed in general

through monthly contributions and some other resources set forth in the regulations of the Fund.

= Payment of insurance benefits is made in the case of terminarion of service due to the member's retirement age, death, whole
permanent disability or partial permanent disability from the service. in the event that the term of the membership is less than
three years, the member of the Fund is paid the final balance of his account correspanding to the contributions paid by him to the

Fund on the date of termination of service or membership.

T/2 System of defined benefits for the medical care of senior employees during the period of service and after retirement

— ADIB applies the system of medical contriburion specified for the senior employees during the service and after retirement. The
liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit plans comprises the present value of the defined benefit
liabilities at the balance sheet date after deduction of the fair value of the assets of the plan and the deduction (addition) of the

unrealised actuarial profit (loss) adjustments and the cost of the additional benefits relating to the previous service periods.

= The liability of the defined benefit plans {future cash flows expected to be paid) is calculated by an independent actuariaf expert
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the cbligation of the defined benefit plans is determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows using the Profit rate of high quality corporate notes or the Profit rate on government

notes bonds in the same currency of paying the benefits and with almoest the same maturity term of the pension benefit liability.

— Gains (losses) arising from adjustments and changes in estimates and actuarial assumptions are calculated and the gains are
deducted (and losses added) to the statement of income if they do not exceed 10% of the asser value of the plan or 10% of the
defined benefit liabilities, whichever is higher. In the event of an increase in gains (losses) over this ratio, the increase is deducted

(added) in the statement of income cver the remaining average working years.
— Past service costs are recognized directly in the starement of income within administrative expenses, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in the service for a specified period of time (Vesting period). In this case,

the past service costs are amortized using straight-line method over the vesting period.
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v}

v)

w)

X)

v)

Financing

ADIB's financings are initially recognized at fair value less costs to obrain financing. The financing will be subsequently measured
at amortized cost. The difference between the net proceeds and the value 1o be fulfilled over the pericd of obtaining financing
using effective Profit methad will be charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures are reclassified to conformto changes in presentation used in the current period

Income taxes

The income tax on profit or loss for the period/ year includes both the current and deferred taxes; itis recognized in the statement
of income except for income tax related to other comprehensive income items that were directly recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income.

The income tax is recognised on the basis of the net taxable income using the effective tax rate arthe finandal position date in

addition to previous year's tax adjustments.

Deferred tax arising from temporary time differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are recognised in
accordance with the accounting bases and the value based on the tax bases. Deferred tax is determined based on the method
used to realise or settle the current values of these assets and liabilities using the tax rates prevailing at the finandal position

dare.

The deferred tax assets are recognised if it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be realised in the future whereby the
asset can be utilised. The value of deferred tax assets will be reduced by the value of the portion not yielding the expected tax
benefit during the following years. However, in case the expected tax benefit increases, the deferred tax assets will increase to

the extent of previous reduction.

Capital issuance fees

Issued and paid up-capital (i.e. Bank's own equity instruments) is initially measured at the cash proceeds received, less
wransaction costs direcely attributable to the issuance of new shares, issuance of shares to effect business combination, or issue
of share options. Transaction costs, net of tax benefits, are reported as a deducrian from equity.

Dividends

Dividends on equity instrumenis issued by the bank are recognized when the general assembly of the bank’s shareholders
approves them. Dividends indude the employees’ profit share and the board of directors’ remuneration as prescribed by the

bank’s articles of incorporation and the corporate law.
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4-  Financial risk management

ADIB, as a result of the activities it exercises, is exposed to various financial risks, taking into account that risks are the basis of
the financial activity, and some risks or group of risks are analysed, evaluated and managed altogether. ADIB intends to strike a
batance between the risk and resurn and to reduce the probable adverse effects on ADIB's financial perfarmance. The most
important types of risks are credit risk and market risk. Market risk comprises foreign currency exchange rates, Profit rate risk

and other pricing risks.

The risk management policies have been laid down to determine and analyse the risks, set limits to the risks and control them
through reliable methods and up-to-date IT systems. ADIB regularly reviews the risk management policies and systems and

amends them to reflect the changes in the markets, products and services, and the best updated applications.

Risks are managed by bath the Risk Committee and the Market Risk and Credit Risk Departments in view of the policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Departments determine, evaluate and cover the financial risks, in collaborarion
with ADIB's various operating units, and the Board provides written principles to manage risks as a whole, in addition to written
policies covering specific risk areas like credit risk, foreign exchange rate risk, Profit rate risk and using derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments. Moreaver, the Risk Commirtee is independently respansible for periodic review of risk

management and control environment.

Risk Management Straregy

ADIB practises its activities through business lines that generate many risks that may vary in terms of frequency, strength and

fluctuation. Therefore, ADIB has taken measures to ensure the effective management of these risks, including increasing the ability

to standardize the degree of risks appetire and risk identifiers, to develop the terms of reference of the core risk department, and 1o

implement an efficient and high-quality risk department structure. The main objectives of ADIB's risk department framework are as

follows:

Contributing to the development of ADIB's various lines of business to reach an optimum level of general risk.
Ensuring the continuity of ADIB through the implementation of a high quality risk department infrasructure.
ln determining ADIB's overall risk appetite, ADIB’s management has taken into account various considerations and variables,
induding:
The relative balance between risk and proceeds for ADIB's various activities.
The degree of the sensitivity of profits to business cycles and credit and economic cycles.

Achieving a parallel package of good profits flows

Risk Management Governance and Risk Management Principles

ADIB's risk department governance is based on the following:

1-

2-
3.

Strong management intervention at all levels of the organization, starting from the Board of Directors to the management of
field task forces respansible for operations.

An integrated framework for internal procedures and guidelines.

Continuous monitoring by business lines and supporting functions, as well as, by an independent Risk Control Body and
cormpliance with the rules and procedures.

Risk and audit committees within the Board are more specifically responsible for examining the compatibility of the internal

framework in order to monitor risks and the adherence to the rules.
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Risk Categories:
The risks associated with ADIB’s banking activities include the following:.

4/1 Credit risk

— Credit risk represents potential losses arising from the possibility that the borrowers or counterparties will fail to fulfil their
abligarions in accordance with contractual terms. Credit risk arises mainly from due from banks balances, financing and facilities
to banks, individuals, SMEs and micro-enterprises, institutions and associaions related to such activities. Credit risk may also arise
from supporting financing / credit guarantees granted such as credit options (Credit Default Swap), financial guarantee contracts,

lesters of credit and letters of guarantee,

~ ADIB is also exposed to credit risk from investment activities in debt instruments and positions outstanding from trading and
financial derivative activities.

~ Credit risk is the most imporant risk to ADIB's activity and therefore ADIB manages the credit risk expasures carefully.
Management and control of ADIB's credit risk shall focus on the retail banking credit risk management group and the institutions
at the Risk Department, which reports to the Risk Cammittee, Senior Management, Heads of Operation Department and BOD on

interim basis.

4/1/1 Credit risk measurement
Financing and facilities to banks and customers (including commioments and financial guarantees)

The estimated exposure to credit risk for purpose of credit risk management is complex, requiring the use of scatistical and electronic
models, as credit risk exposure varies with changes in market conditions and other economic aspects in a complex and rapid manner.
Exposure of credit risk changes with changes in the [evel, value, time of expected cash flows and aver time, The creditrisk assessment
of the asset portfolio, therefore, requires further estimates of the probability of default and related loss rates. ADIB measures the credit
risk losses using the rates of probability of failure {failure to fulfil contractual obligations} (Probability of default) on the basis of the
book balance of the financial instrument at the date of failure (Exposure at default), and the rate of loss upan failure {Loss given

defaulr).

ADIB's internal rating categories

Classification Classification rating
Stage (1} Good Debts
Stage (1) Special Follow-up
Stage (1) Bad Debts
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Classification of the Credit Risks

ADIB assesses the probability of default on each customer / affiliated group / credit product, using methods to classify customers in
different categories, taking into account the minimum rating in accordance with the CBE's instructions on determining the
creditworthiness of customers and the formation of provisions issued during 2005. Accordingly, ADIB uses a group of models and
methods thar are internally designed models and valuation methods for the counterparty categories and customers and the nature
of the various financings under the available information collecred at the date of application of the used model (e.g, income level,
spendable income level, guarantees for individual custamers, revenue, industry type, and other financial and non-financial indicators
for institutions). ADIB completes these indicators with a range of external data such as query reports from CBE, credit reporting
companies on borrowers and reperts of other domestic and foreign credit rating agencies. In addition, the models used by ADIB shall
allowthe systemaric assessment of experis by credit risk officers in the final internal creditrating, Thus, this allows to take into account
other matters and indicators that may not have been taken as part of other data inputs into evaluation forms and methods designed

internally or through external sources.

Credit scores are calibrated so that the risk of failure increases incrementally with each higher risk score. This means that the
difference in failure rates of grade A and A- is less than the difference in failure rates between grade B and B-. The following are

additional considerations for each type of credit partfolios held by ADIB:

® Individuals, Retail Banking Products and Small and Micro Enterprises
After the date of initial recognition, the payment behaviour of the borrower shall be monitored on an interim basis to calculate a
payment pattern. Any other known information about the borrower identified by ADIB may affect the creditworthiness such as
unemployment rates and non-payment precedents as they will be included to measure the repayment pattern, and accordingly,

defauli rares will be deterrined for each scale of repayment pattern.

¢ Large and Medium Enterprises
The rating is determined at the level of the borrower / groups with similar credit risk, and any updated or new credit infermation
or assessments will be included in the credit system on a continuous and periodic basis. In addition, information on the
creditworthiness of the borrower / groups with similar credit risk are periodically updated from other sources such as financiaf
statements and other published financial and non-financial data. This will determine the degree of internal credit rating updated

and failure rates.

® Financing Instruments issued by the Egyptian Government and CBE

Financing instruments, Treasury Bills and Government Bonds

= ADIB uses external classifications of institutions that comply with the CBE's instructions to manage the credit risk for debr
instruments in the investment portfolio. These ratings are regularly monitored and updated periodically. The default rates
associated with each rating are determined on the basis of rates achieved aver the previous 12 months as published by the

aforementioned rating agencies. The loss rate for government debt instruments and the central bank in local currency equals zero.

— ADIB's rating of creditworthiness of government debt instruments, where the primary measure of each rating caregory gives a
specific range of probability of default, is stable over time. ADIB complies with the internal rating categaries alongside with the
rating categories set by CBE according to the instructions of determining creditworthiness and the formation of provisians, and
reviewing that compliance on a regular basis. The rating methods are periodically re-calibrated and validated 1o reflect the most

recent projections in light of al assumptions observed in reality.
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4/1/2 Future Data Used in the Expected Loss Modet

= Future data is used to determine whether there is a significant increase in the credit risk of financial instruments and the estimated
credit losses {(ECL). ADIB management determines the key economic variables that affect the credit risk and credit losses expected
for each credit portfolio by analysing historical data The economic variables and their impact are different on both Probability of
Default {PD) and Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) depending an the different financial asset. ADIB seeks

expert opinions regarding such assumptions and estimations, if necessary.

— Risk departments and credit departments of ADIB make estimates of these econamic variables on a quarrerly basis, and ideniify
better estimations for those variables over the next five years. After these five years, ADIB uses methad of "Mean Revession
Approach” in estimating those variables over the remaining life of each financial asset. Consequently, in the long term, those
economic variables head to the level of the currently estimated averages or the estimated growth averages in the current period
within a period of 2-5 years.

= In order to determine the impact of these economic variables on PD "Probability of Default”, "Exposure at Default” EAD and "Loss
Given Default” LGD, ADIB's management conducts the "Regressian Analysis” in order to understand the historical effects resulting

from those variables on the default rates and the inputs used in calculating EAD and LGD.

— In addition to basie economic scenarios, ADIB's management makes other possible scenarios, as well as the perceptions related to

each scenario separately.

— ADIB's management conducts these economic scenarios for afl important credit products in order to ensure that all non- linarites

variables are incduded. These scenarios and their related characteristics are reviewed at the financial position date.

— Lifetime PD is used for both basic and ather scenarios where the outcome of multiplying each scenario is made with their respecrive
probabilities, as well as the supporting indicators and qualitative indicators. Based on the results of this study, an estimate is made
as to whether thar financial asset is at the first, second or third stage, on the basis of which itis determined whether the expected

credit loss (ECL) is calculated on a 12-month basis or over the lifetime of the financial instrument "Lifetime ECL”,

= Expectations and probability of occurrence ate subject to highly uncertain degree as known for any economic expectations, so
actual results may differ significandy from those expected. ADIB conducts the best estimate of these potential projections and
makes an analytical study of the unrelated and non-similar factors for the various credit portfolios in order to arrive at appropriate

scenarios for all possible scenarios.
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Variable Economic Assumptions
The follawing are the key year-end assumptions thar have been used to estimare ECL :
Enterprises’ Portfolio
®  Gross domestic product (GDP).
"  Stock Exchange Market Index
Individuals' Portfolio
B Gross domestic product {GDP).

& Private consumption

= Balancing capital expenditures as a percentage of GDP.
The basic, downside, and upside scenarios were used for all portfolios.

ADIB did not use some future data other than the aforementioned, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative or political
changes, due to not being considered to have a significant impact, and therefore no adjustment was made to the ECL for these

variables, which was reviewed and monitored to ensure their suitability on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity Analysis

The main assumptions affecting the expected credit loss provision (ECL) are as follows

Individuals and Institutions Portfolio

The following represent the most important sensitivity analysis used to estimate the expected credit losses:

- At least three scenarios are conducted to study future forecasts and 1o determine their impact on the variables of the expecred credit

loss measurement model. These scenarios represent:
- Basic Scenario
- Downside Scenario
- Upside Scenario

- The calculation of the expected credit loss reflects, without any bias, the probable weighted scenario, which is determined based on

the assessment of & range of expected results instead of reliance on the upside and downside seenarios.
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4/1/3 Classification of loss-relared instruments measured on the basis of similar groups

Regarding Expected Credit Losses “ECL”, groups are classified on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics, so that risk at ADIB is
homogenous. While executing this classification, it will be taken into co nsideration that there is sufficient information to enable ADIB
to classify ADIB with staristical credibility. In the absence of sufficient information, ADIB takes into account complementary internal
/ external reference data, The following are examples of those characteristics and any supplementary data that are used ro determine

the dlassification:

Individuals’ Financing - Groups are formed as per:

®  Theratio of financing to asset value (for financing to purchase assets);

" Creditrating;

" Product type (such as housing / real estate moartgage purchase, overdraft, credit card, car financing); or

®  Payment type (payment of principal + Profit / Profit only) or the percentage used from the authorized limit

Corporates’ Financing - Groups are formed as per:
®  lndustry;

¥ Type of guarantees;

®  Creditrating; or

®  Geographical area of exposure

4/1/4 Amendments to the terms of financing and re-structuring

~ ADIB sometimes adjusts the terms of financing submitted to customers due to commercial re-negotiation or non-performing
financings in order to maximize recovery opportunities. These restructuring activities include arrangements 1o extend the
fepayment periad, grace periods, exemption from payment or some/ar of the Profits. Restructuring policies and practices are based
on indicators or criteria thart indicare - in management’s assessment - that payment will likely continue. These palicies remain under

constant review.

~ ADIB continues to manitor whether there s a significant increase in credit risk with respect to those assets through the use of

specific models for the adjusted assers.

4/1/5 Risk limit control and mitigation policies
ADIB manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk at the level of debtor, groups, industries and countries.

ADIB manages the credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk that will be accepted at the level of each borrower
or groups of borrowers and at the level of economic activities and geagraphical sectors. Such risks are monitored on an ongoing basis
and are subject to an annual ar frequent review when necessary. Limits at the level of borrower/ bank, product, sector and co untry

are approved quarterly by the Board of Directors,

The exposure to any borrower including banks is further restricred by sub-limits covering on- and off-the financial position exposures,
and daily delivery risk limits in refation to trading items such as promise-based forward Islamic foreign exchange contracts. Actual

exposures against limits are monirored daily.

Exposure 1o credit risk is also managed through regular analysis of the existing and potensial borrowers' ability to meet their

obligations and through adjusting the financing limits as appropriate,
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Here are some ways to limit risk:
Guarantees

ADIB applies a range of policies controls to mitigate credit risk. One of these methods is obtaining guarantees against the financed

funds. ADIB establishes guidelines for specific categories of acceptable guarantees.
The principal guarantees types for financing and facilities are:

®  (Cash and cash equivalents
®  Real estate mortgages.
= Commercial mortgages

®  Finandial instruments mortgage, such as debt and equity instruments.

Long-term financing and corporate lending are often secured, while credit facilities for individuals are unsecured. Ta reduce credit
loss to a minimum, ADIB seeks additional guarantees from the concerned parties as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for

any financing or facilities.

ADIB determines the collaterals held to guarantee assets other than financing and facilities according to the nature of the instrument.
Generally, debt instruments and treasury bills are unsecured except for asset-backed securities and similar instruments that are

secured by a financial instruments portfolio.

Credit-relared commitments

Credit-related commitments represent the unused portion of credit limit authorised to grant financing, guarantees or letters of credit.
ADIB is exposed to a possible loss of an amount that equals the total unused commitments as for the credit risk resulting from credit-
relared commitments. However, the probable amount of foss is less than the unused commitments as most commitments related to
granting credit represent contingent liabilities to customers maintaining certain credit standards. ADIB monitors the maturity dare of

the credic commitments because lang-term commitments are of a higher credit risk than short-term commitments.
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4/1/6 Impairment and provisioning policies

The aforementioned internal rating systems focus more on credit quality planning as of the date financing and investment activities
are recognized. Otherwise, impairment losses that occur at the financial statements date are only recognised for financial reports
purposes based on objective evidence indicating impairment according to what will be mentioned in this note. Due to the different
methodologies applied, the amounts of incurred credit losses charged to the financial statements are usually lower than the estimated

loss amount using the expected loss mode! used for purposes of the rules the Centraf Bank of Egypt.

The impairment foss provision included in the financial statements at the end of the year is derived from the four internal ratings.
However, the majority of the provision is derived from the last rating. The following table shaws the percentage of the items within
the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2025 related to financing, facilities, and related impairment for each of

ADIB's internal assessment categories:

31 Dacember 2025 31 December 2024
Financing and Impairment losses Financing and impairment losses
Bank's evaluation facilities provision facilities provision
Stage 1 95% 35% 93% 27%
Stage 2 2% 13% 5% 41%
Stage 3 3% 52% 2% 2%
100% 100% 100% 100%

The internal rating tools assist the management to determine whether there is evidence of impairment under EAS 47, based on the

following criteria set out by ADIB:

e Significant financial difficulty of the customer or the debtor.

e Breach of the financing agreement conditions such as default.

® Expected banksuptcy of the customer, entering into a liquidation lawsuit, or restructuring the finance granted to the customer.

® Deterioration of the competitive position of the customer.

® Granting privileges or assignments by ADIB to the customer due to economic or legal reasons related to the financial difficulties
of the borrower, which are nat granted by ADIB in the normal course of husiness.

* |mpairment of the guarantee.

® Deterioration of creditworthiness.

ADIB's policies require reviewing all financial assets that exceed specific materiality at least once a year or more, when required. The
impairment loss is determined for accounts evaluated on an individual basis by determining case-by-case actual losses at the financial
statements date. These policies are applied on all accounts which have specific materiality on an individual basis. The valuation
usually includes the existing guarantee, the related enforcements on these guarantees and the expected collections from those
accounts.

Aprovision is made for impairment losses on the basis of the group of similar assets using the available historical experience, personal

judgment and staristical techniques.
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4/1/7 General banking risk measurement model

In addition to ADIB's four internal rating categories described above, the management classifies loans and facilities in the form of
moare detailed sub-groups in line with the requirernents of the Central Bank of Egypt. The assets exposed o credit risk in these groups
are classified according to derailed rules and conditions that rety heavily on informarion related to customer’'s business, financial
position and regularity of payment.

ADIB calculates the provisions required to offser the impairment of assets exposed to credit risk, including credit-related
commitments, on the basis of ratios set by the Central Bank of Egypt. In case of the excess of the provision for impairment losses
required in accordance with the creditworthiness rules of the Central Bank of Egypt aver the provision required to use the expected
credit losses, such excess in the pravision is set aside as a general banking risk reserve within equity to be deducted against recained

earnings by the amount of thar excess.

The following is a description of the creditworthiness categories of the institutions according to the principles for determining the
creditworthiness of customers in accardance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Egypt in this regard and the percentage of

provisions required for the impairment of assets exposed to credit risk:

Raring Reguired Internal Internal rating

CBE radng description provision % rating description

1 Low risk Zero 1 Gaood debes

2 Moderate risk 1% 1 Good debts

3 Satisfacrory risk 1% 1 Good debres

4 Appropriate risk 2% 1 Good debis

s Acceptable risk 2% 1 Good debts

6 Marginally acceptable risk 3% 1 Regular watch up

7 Risk needs special attention 5% 2 Special watch up

8 Substandard 20% 3 Non-performing debts

9 Doubtful 50% 3 Non-performing debts

10 Bad debts 100% 3 Non-performing debts
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4/1/8 Maximum limix for credit risk before guarantees

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

Balance sheet items exposed ro credit risk EGP {in thousands) EGP {in thousands)
Due from Banks 57,433,131 98,117,56559
Financing and facilities to banks and customers

Facilities to banks 4802479 2,030,727
Retail financing

Drebit current accounts 7.290 2855
Creditcards 1,903,639 1,276,893
Personal financings 46,693,817 26,129,524
Real estate financings 466,430 599,717
Corporate flnancings

Debit current accounts 13,511,634 +3,B78.758
Cradit cards 745 70
Diremct financings B8B,772,357 58,994,996
Syndicated financings 3,313,838 1,463,357
Less Expecred Credic Losses {7,443 689) (6,662,099)
Einancial investwenes

Dabtinsrruments ar FVOCH 22,185,068 2,490,373
Debt instruments at amortized cost 80,350,465 39040223
Toral 313,997,205 237.370053
Credix risk of off bal h

Letrers of credie {import+ confirmed export) 11,211,401 9973110
Letzers of guarantes 44,354.310 31,839,568
Letters of guarantee for suppliers facilities 7,441,436 7.190.358
Bank guarantees 3,208,515 4,487,803
Toral 56,255,762 53,490,839

—  The previous table represents the maximum expasure on 31 December 2025, withourt taking any guarantees into consideratton.

For financial position items, the reported amounts depend on the net carrying amount that was presented in the financial

position.

As shown in the previous table, 48.73% of the maximum expasure 1o credit risk is the result of financing and facilities for banks
and customers, against 41.47% at the end of the comparative year, while investments in Financing instruments represent

32.86% against 17.5% at the end of comparative year.

The management is confident of its ability to maintain control on an ongoing basis and maintain the minimum credic risk resuleing

from the portfolio of financing, facilities and debt instruments based on the following:

97.41% of the portfolio of financing and facilities is cdlassified in the two highest degrees of internal rating compared to 97,83% at

the end of the comparative year.

95,28% of the financing and facilities portfolio does not have past dues or impairment indicators against 92.59% at the end of the

comparative year.

The finances and facilities assessed on & single basis amounted to EGP 4,126 million compared to EGP 2,269 million ar the end of

the comparative year.

ADIB applied more conservative selection processes when granting financing and facilities during the financial peried on 31

December 2025.
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4/1/9 Financing and facilities
The balances of financing and facilities in terms of credit worthiness are as follows:

EGP (in thousands)
31 Decamber X5 31 Ducember 24

Fmarcngand  Fruacegand  TowlFmces  Fuancogand  Finncagand ot Rnancieg
ficliestocustomers fackiestobanks  andfacies  Fltectocustomers fackiestobanks  andfaciltes

Financing and faciities

Suge W62 439319 151953518 4H13681 2033552 %6647,33
Stage 2 19723 - 3o 5470559 : 5470559
Stage3 4155 . LB 2268530 - 15390
Toud 15466751 430319 1534700 023310 233,552 4305722
Less

Expected CreditLosses {T44369) (654} (740529) {ase20) {28%3) {5664024)
Net L6 L2An 152028541 walm e 9.7,

— During the financial period on 31 December 2025, ADIB's porfolio of financing and facilities increased by 52.78% (31 December
2024: an increase of 53.85%)
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4/1/9 Financing and facilities

Financing and facilities Credit worthiness.

EGP {in thousands)
Retall
Debit curent
31 December 2025 Creditcards  Personalfinancings Realestate financing; Total
accounts
Crwd hi &5 per ADIB & d rating
Stage 1 7,290 1,780572 45,533,533 453,093 47,774,488
Stage 2 - 105,873 908,718 720 TS0
Staged - 17,194 601,566 5427 G107
Toal 2290 1.903.639 46,593,817 466430 19071176
{Lesa) Expected Cradit Lossas - (192,.396) (778,945) {16,105} (985.446)
Bookvalue 7.290 171,243 45916872 450,325 48,085,730
Debit current
31December 2014 Cradit cards P ] i ngs Real financings Tozal
aceounty
Creditworthiness as pes ADIBi f rating
Stage1 9,855 1,171,886 25,365,669 585,109 27,136,519
Stage 2 - B7545 445116 s S34.976
Stage 3 - 17,462 318,739 8293 344494
Total 9855 1.27%.893 26,129,524 558,717 23,015,989
(Less} Expected Cradit Losses = (151861} {450471) {10.369) (612,701)
Bookvalue 9,855 1,125.032 25,679,053 589,348 17,403,288
EGP (in thowsands)
Corporata
Debiie currene Syndicared
31 December 2025 f Co A1 Creditcards Direcx financings foancings Total
Cradi chi a5 per ADIB i I rating
Stage 1 13508027 746 H3919821 15943217 37141
Stage 2 1322 - 2,723,900 - 2.725.302
Stage3 1285 - 2,128,556 1370621 3,501,462
Totad 13.511.634 76 S4.7720.357 3313059 105.58.575
(Less) Expected Crudit Lossas {341,203) (] (4,639,760} {1477,190) (6,458,243}
Book value 13.170.351 736 84,132,597 1.536.648 99,140,332
Dbt curreme Syndicated
31 December 2024 Cradit cardy Direct financings Torad
] financings
Creditworthiness as per ADIB intemal rating
Srage1 13533236 70 53,736,194 07662 67477162
Stage2 281,321 = 3,396,967 1,255,605 4,935,583
Stagel 64101 - 1860335 - 1824436
Total 13,872,758 m 50,954,996 1,463,357 74,337,181
(Lass} Expactad Cradit Losses (705,236) G} (4,085,553} {1,257,606) (6.049.398)
Bookvalue 1317352 &7 54,968,243 205.751 68,287.783
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Financing and facilities that are past due but are not impaired

Financing and facilities that are past due but are not impaired, unless other information is available to the contrary. The financing

and facilities to custamers that are past due but are notimpaired and the fair value of their guarantees are as follows:

EGP{in thousands|
Retail
Debis cusrent
31December 2025 Credic cards Pervanal financings Real estate financings Toral
accounts
Pastdues upto J0days 7,290 1,780572 45533513 453093 47,7408
Past dues more than 30 1o 90 days . 105873 558,118 7810 7250
Toeal 7.290 1,606,445 46,092,251 461,003 48496509
£GP {in thousands]
Retail
Debie conem
31 December 2024 Creditcards Personal financings  Real estate financings Total
ACOUMS
Pastduesupto M days 9855 11715886 25,365,665 S@9,109 27,136,519
Pastdues mare than 30 o 90 days - 87,545 45116 235 53497
Toud 9,255 1,259431 25,810,785 591424 767149
E5P{in thousands)
Corporate
Debit cument Syndicaced
31Decembe: 2025 Credit cards Direct financings Total
acrounts financings
Pastdues up 1o 30 days 13508027 745 23919821 1543117 99371811
Pastdues more lhan!ﬁmmdays 1322 - 2723960 - 2705302
Totad 13.500,349 746 26,643.801 1,943,217 WZW7113
EGP {in thousands,
Cumuute
Debix current Syndicated
3 December 2024 Creditcards Direct financings Total
ACCOmMS financings
Pastduesupto 30 days 13,533,236 Ta 33736194 X7he2 G7477,162
Pastdues more than 30t 90 days 28141 - 3,358 467 1255695 4935583
Toal 13,014,657 » §7,134,667 1,463,357 ML

Upon the initial recognition of financing and facilities, the fair value of the collaterals are assessed based on valuation techniques

commonly used for similar assets. In subsequent periods, fair value is updated at market prices or at similar asset prices.
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Financing and facilities that are subject to impairment solely
¢ Financing and facilicies for customers

The analysis of the total value of the financing and facilities subject to impairment solely is as follows:

EGP(in thousands,
Retail
Debit cument Personal Realestate
3 December 2025 Credit cards Total
a&counts financings financings
Solely impaired financing - 17154 601,566 SAT 624,187
Debit cusment Personal Realestate
31 December 2024 Credit cards Tota!
accounts financings financings
Solelyimpaired financing = 17461 87’ 8293 34
Corposate
Debit cument Syndicated
31 December 2025 Creditcards  Directfinancings Total
atcounts financings
Solelyimpaired financing 85 - 11185% 137061 3,501,462
Debit curent Syndicared
31 December 014 Crediccards  Directfinancings Totad
accounts financings
Solely impaired financing 64101 - 1,860,335 - 1924436
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4/1/10 Transfer between stages

- The below Table Shows the Transfer Berween Stage for Facilities and Financing

EGP (inthousasds)
H Deceber 035 31 December 1024
Stape | Stage2 Stage3 Toul Sagel Stage? Stage3 Toud
Resil 2Month Life time Lifetine 12Month Lz fime ke e
Financing and facilites atBeginmingofthe Vaar TA%S9 534876 34434 28015589 17309470 58365 ETL: L
Transferred rom stage {50047} .1 B . {5105%0) 1060 170500
Transferred from ctage 2 Ll H66791) %752 - ] {108561) 85890
Transferred from stage 3 416 1367 (a583) - 344 i} {2417)
Re-Messurementimpict 53147 {579 57538 (s4967) {335045) {10536) B1am)  (34845%)
Finanial assets Orighnated 0531148 i . 05870 16516745 7178 6IB5N
Financialassets hspsed off paid (3851 {13309 . () {30042} {153817) 4mm (3
Used provisions = - {i18047) (116.047) - d {164,381} (164,387}
Balance of imancing and faciiies AR 67250 (817 HON1% D65 549% 38 01590
EGP (inthousands
31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Stage Stape? Stage3 Totdl Stagn Stage 2 Stage3 Total
Corporate 12Monch Life time Life tine: 12Manth Life tiose Life time
Fimndngmifidlitiu at Beg‘nmngd:be\'ur &7ATIIGE 4835583 182443 74337181 45,198,387 39179 60 49,599,
Transferredfromstage 1 {u338) bk 5499 . (1002508} o518 750
Transferred from stsga 4959 (L5aL5) 1833064 : 1648 {1,126080) 1144
Transferred fromstage 3 169548 38 (1)
Re-Measurement impact {2836,495) {ra800) 180558 (2.9058%) 1310 (318552) %4561 mR
Forsign exchange translation éiferences {o8a547) (™) (804)  (1135850) 7240184 191 62065 110450
Financialassets Orginated 72474930 152467 2 B 9250545 1519560 oINS
Finandial asvets dispasedoff paid (7131045} {ETa.376} - {38.000415) {13463024) (#57393) 1554 {n11507)
Usedpravisions g - {14901} {414901) : . {81599 (415.929)
Balance of Financing and faciisies 931N 27520 INAB  IESHSK GATIIR B 19240% I
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4/1/10 Transfer between stages — Continued

- The below Table Shows the Transfer Between Stage for Expected Credit Loss

EGP (inthowsands}
31 Decenbes 2025 H Decaber 124
Sage Siage2 Sue3 Total Stage Stage 2 Sage3 Toud

Retal 12Month Lifeime Ltfetime 12Month Lifeiane Lifetime
Expeced reitlossesabeginningofthe ear i 11435 1500 §127m i) 8217 309069 612
Transhered From tege | (0] m B0 . (15509} 4030 e
Transfemed from stage 2 17307 &7 m) H o 14558 {363M 208
Transferedfom stage3 ] 164 (T153) - 4 2 sn
Re-Measurementimpart s By i wm (51503} 6105 17855 1
Financial assets Originated L] 2918 . mw 74 B - nas
Financalasses diposedof paid {8003} {0791) . {29m8) {8563 {1 (1977} (74)
Used prvisons - - (416047 {116047) . . {164362) {164382)
Balunce of Expectad CreditLosses w5 17%1 mm A% mm 14545 5 §m

EGP [inthousands)

31 Decasmber X015 3t Decesber 4
Stage Stae? Stape Tatal Stage Sage? Stage? Toud
Conporate Mok Lfetine  Letime DMonth  Liedme Lt
Expected rnitosses atbegining ofthe Year 154602 26401419 1561567 (TLE. 1004381 4k 3. “51 I3
Transfumad fromstage (27%) 1579 110 - by 1813 it
Transfered from stage? ¥ {7 14 - 7 {eoves) w1
Transferred from stage 3 163547 3] {1ra2)
ReMezsurementintgact 054} 163758 8185 $4643 WgT? 19485 k] 16118H
Foreign excharige ranslation i ferences %7 (1273%) (77 {14813) 143248 511,793 56,438 HiAm
Finandil asetsCriinated 1064254 BoR . 1153.3% 584069 16 : M5
Finandalassetstisposad of] paid {ann {19162) - (681,209) {30214 (1ch0 ¥ap {Bast7)
Used prnisins . o (414501) (eseam) . - {#1508) {n5.98)
Baance of Expected CreditLosses L3166 k] 34 65808 1546012 16HA1 106197 600308
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Nortes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

4/1/11 Debt instruments, treasury bills and other government securities

The following table shows the analysis of Financing instruments, treasury bills and other government securities according to rating

agencies at the end of the financial year, based on Standard & Poos's valuation and its equivalent

1 Decomber 5 31 Decersher 224
. & TreasuryBonds §iTreasury Bonds
Dot g s Tressuy bl my DoeFonbiaks  Tezsuybls T pfonbats
and other govermment securkies amic Sk Il Sukuk
A A il
kbt - 255548 1035378
Lessthan’- 1147655% hs4n 315304 94 o187
Tota 174%557 6097 115965 Hynar 21769
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT — S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

4/2 Market Risk

ADIB is exposed to market risk represented in flucruaions in fair value or future cash flows arising from changes in market prices. The

market risk arises from the open positions of the Profit rate and the currency, as each is exposed to general and private movements in the

marker and changes in the level of sensitivity to market rates or prices such as rates of Profit and exchange rates. ADIB separates its exposure

to market risk to trading or non-trading portfolios.

The management of market risk arising from trading or non-trading activities is concentrated in ADIB's risk management and is monitored

by two separate teams. Market risk reports are reported to the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors and heads of operating units an a

regular basis.

The portfolios of financial investments at fair value through profit or loss include those positions resulting from ADIB's direct dealing with

customers or with the market, while non-trading portfolios arise primarily from managing the Profic rate on assets and liabilities. These

portfolios include foreign exchange risk and equity instruments arising from financial investments at amortized cost and financial

investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

4/2/1 Market risk measurement techniques

= As part of market risk management, ADIB undertakes various hedging straregies. ADIB also enters into swaps to match the Profit rate
risk associated with the debt instruments and fixed-rate long-term financing if the fair value option has been applied. The major

measurement techniques used to contral market risk are outlined below:

Value at risk

®  ADIB applies a ‘value at risk’ methodology (VAR) for trading and non-trading portfolios 1o estimate the market risk on positions held
and the maximum expected losses based on a number of assumptions for various changes in market conditions. The Board sets
separate limits for the value of risk that may be accepted by ADIB for trading and non-trading portfolios and are monitored daily by
ADIB’s market risk management.

" VAR is a statistical essimation of the expected losses on the current portfolio resulting from adverse market movements, which
represent the maximum amount ADIB expects to lose using a confidence level of (98%). Therefore, there is a statistical probability of
{2%) that actual lasses could be greater than the VAR estimation. The VAR model assumes that the holding period is ten days before
closing the open positions. It is also assumed that the marker movement during the holding period will fallow the same partern of
movement that occurred during the previaous ten days. ADIB estimates the previous movement based on daca for the previous five
years. ADIB applies these historical changes in rates, prices, indicators, erc., directly to its current positions. This approach is called
historical simulation. Actual outcomes are monitored regutarly to test the validity of the assumptions and factors used in the VAR
calculation.

B The use of that technique does not prevent the loss to exceed those limits in the case of a larger movementin the market.

= AsVAR is considered a primary part of ADIB's market risk control technique, VAR fimits are established by the Assets and Liabilities
Commitiee regularly for all rading and non-trading transactions and allocared to business units. Actual VAR are compared to the limits
set by ADIB and reviewed daily by ADIB’s risk management. The quality of the VAR model is continuously monitored through

enhanced VAR testing of the trading partfolio and the results of the tests are submitted to the Assets and Liabilities Committee.

% The quality of VAR model is monitored on an ongoing basis by reinforced tests to the results of the VAR of trading portfolio, and the

results of tests are reported to the senior management and Board of Directors.
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.AE

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Stress testing

®  Siress testing provides an indicator of the expected losses that may arise from sharp adverse circumstances. Stress testing is designed
to match the business using standard analysis for specific scenarios, The stress testing carried out by the risk management include risk
factor stress testing where sharp movements are applied to each risk caregory and emerging markets stress tests, as emerging markets
are subject to sharp movements and special stress tests, including possible stress events affeaing specific positions or regions, such as
what may arise in a certain region due to applying a free rate on a certain currency. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the

top management and the Board of Directors.

®  Srress testing related to exchange rate

The following table shows the position of the currencies (surplus or deficit} of the items inside and outside the balance sheet

EGP{in thousands)
Maximum expected
loss
Currency Surplus / defick Deficit Surplus 10%
usb 127,949 - 127949 12795
Euro 16,582 - 16,582 1,658
Sterling Pound 2762 - 2,762 276
Swiss Franc 4709 - 4709 47
Japanese Yen {208) {208} - {20
Other cumendies 16238 5 16238 1624
Maximum expected foss 31 Dacember 2025 16,803
Maximum expected loss 31 Dacember 2024 15,022
4/2/2 VAR summary
Total value at risk by the type of risk
EGP (inthousands}
31December 2025 31 December 2024
Average Highes Lower Average Higher Lawer

Totalvalue s risk according torisk
Exchange ratss risk 6760 31,106 145 10734 448 66
Profitrate risk 87,350 316295 21775 18,200 40995 4488
Toual value 2t risk 893910 348,005 s 5 B8 4554
Valus at risk of the trading portfolio according to sk type
Exchange rates risk 5,750 106 5 10734 440 656
Totalvalue ar risk 6,760 31,106 145 0.7 “A3 6
value st risk of a non-1r according to sk
Profitrate risk 87,150 ki) nirs 18,200 40995 4,488
Tosal value atrisk 07,150 316,899 2,755 18200 40,995 4488

55
C1I - Internal Financial Contrel FRU



{1 13U |BIUBUL [EUIaia] - [

9
615709562 (¥erLEw) (e521) 0ESEL sop'n Al 899407 uainsed pousuyiay
005595 922 eoLBLL 060 oL oesszs 06Dz 00 0920Uc) soumIqerI e priay.
G109 L '95E SELPOT 810z £1E00L°L S81LPES 95LLZTE +09'065°S5L S3assE iUy (R0
HZOT Jaqusa2a ] LT
ELL'BOL WY (se8°GE¥) {eoL) (T56°L8€°1L) LA OGETOL'L 659076 4F uoyiod rouwy i
LEEZEL 'S6 HEOIE s ST 008 BYESSS SU6'CUD'SE WP ELS 96 T SEEReT] jETFuTIL eIy
STEEIDL -5 5 ETRLL [=ira FSF-1-714 £O01.EL FMNUBARY pRRAY
S00°TET DL 7 - ¥ = GFLELLD 098°c 48y slupaumay pazeuypagng
L690rL = - ££93 - SIRt L1295 saaviuns aSuryaxe pesiwod eig apams
OLEPORLLT 0TO'FER 105 ¥ZaaLvol FELEES IS0 L0V ELE'GEL caFedap fweasn
ASL VTGS oo i oFLrl 03 SI0PIOS e SHuRg o ang
SRR
LB BT SEL LK GEY P{uacs -3 ] 804795 SLEDRLE OFL Y OFE CIAEEH PIUTUL WD |
ITHOLOE 261 - FEEEL LK 129y seRors'y - - T ———
1 3:2'0s s 0 . H 2 = 3 d £I2004/ pOERaY
SOFDSCIT = = L5000 - PLIPOE T 2CLEPILE 1503 PALGIUE B S1U8 WISSAN| [EOLEBULY
SPEOTRTT = o wEe 0 8.8°068 PEZ'rIEINT I3OA ¥ LB UBLBAN | [R5 UNULA
Lo CFL = - - - - LOp i TdAd V8 CILBIALAA] (WM
L9aEL = - © o SFE STvEL ss3wauos sBuryaxe pesiuosd sig sumps
Z90977'L¥L - - BEEPOS'S £E1719 GErRENST €20 19691E c+2wa3ena M3 conpany pub slususuy
G2V Toar - - - - GV IORT - 3 UM 03 s 2Ry pur slupueu )y
LEL'ERPLE 61586 8’y SRE 8L (Y 20071881 € 2oL Hjurg wes; eng
o980 GE EPLEL - ZOKLL EIE 0 ELOTA? ¥ 98981 34433 josupg |Ra3usT) wiSls SNP PUD YETY
e R
ey e uep essurde| wang punog Juipess asn FE ST0Z 1equussag g

[C L T T

SaPUALIND 3anYadsal HAL Ul PAINGUISIP SILALINIISUI [BIILBUL JO INjEA

yooq ap siwasaid ajqer Suimoy| o) ay | reak [epuBUY Y1 40 pua 3yI TR Ysu a8urypxa udrato) 01 2unsodxa s gy sazuRWILINS a|qe1 Buwayjo) ay 1 Kep ap Suunp se jjam se Kep ayp Jo pus ayl Te suopsod

3Y1 40 yIe3 Jo anjea [e10) 341 12 aBueydxa LBI210) U0 S 195 SBY 101331 JO pIrog 2y ‘SMOY Ysed pue uopisod [erouBUY 51 Lo saxes a8ueyaxa uSiainy ur sueneNIINY JO Ysp a1 o1 pasodxa si gy =

sodes a8ueysxe uBmioj i suonenpInp Jo s £/7/p

$ZOT 4aquada(] L papua 1eak aya 104

SIUUAVIS [PIDURUY PIFEPHOSUOD 3L O] SAION

3'v'S — 1dA93 — (91av) JINVE DIWV1SI 19VHA N9V




ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT — S.A.E

Notes to the consolidared financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

4/2/4 Profit rate risk

ADIB is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the Profit rates prevailing in the market, which is the risk of cash flows of the Profit rate
represented in fluctuation of future cash flows for a financial instrument due to changes in the Profit rate of the instrument. Fair value
Profit rate risk is the risk that the value of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market Profit rates. The Profit margin
may increase due to these changes; however, profits may decrease in case unexpecied mavements arise. The ALCO Commitzee sets limits

on the level of mismatch of Profit rate repricing that ADIB may maintain, which is monitared daily by ADIB's risk management.

Profit rate structure risk management system

Risk assessment, limits and corrective procedures are undertaken by the Asser-Liability Committee (ALCO) under the chairmanship of
the President of ADIB, the membership of the Executive Directors, the CFO, Directors pf Commercial Departments, the Branch Network
Manager, the Secretary General and the President of the International Transaction Chamber. The International Transactions Chamber
implements the necessary procedures determined by the Asset and Liability Committee to correct the gaps through dealing in financial
markets. The Chamber prepares its reports on the development that has occurred and subrmits them to the Assets and Liabilities Unic and

the Assets and Liabilities Commitee.

Asset-Liability Committee (ALCO) Duties

-Determination of acceptable limits for sensitivity analysis purposes
-Reviewing the assumptions used to identify, measure, validate and apprave risks.
~Evaluating, modifying and adopting the proposed recommendations for the adjustment of gaps (if any) in line with the previously

approved limits.

ADIBs’ objective of managing Profit rare risk

ADIB aims to reduce its exposure to the risk structure of the Profit rare to the maximum extent possible, taking into account that the

residual risk value resulting from Profit rates is within the limits of the sensitivity level approved by the Assets and Liabiiities Committee.
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Profit Rate Sensitivity Analysis
B The following is sensitivity analysis on the increase or decrease in the Profit rates in the market, assuming thar there is no symmerric
movement in the Profit curves with the stability of the financial position.

Sensitivity of net income expected from Profit

EGP {in thousands)

31December 2025 31 Decamber 2024

Profit rate sensitivity analysis Average Higher Lower Average Higher Lower
Sepsitivity of nee expactad income from profie

Increase or decrease 200 basis points 503255 749,701 144028 790,900 928,194 568942
Totalvalue atrisk 503,255 749,791 144,028 750,500 929,194 568.942

ity sensitivity to ¢ in rates.

Incraase or decrease 200 basis points 503,255 749,791 144028 790900 928,154 568,942
Total value atrisk 503,255 749,79 144,028 790,900 928,194 568,942

® Changes in Profit rates affect equity in the following ways:
~ Retained earnings: Increase or decrease in net income from the Profic and the fair value of the financial derivatives and included within
profit and loss.
Fair value reserve: Increase or decrease in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (before 1
January 2019: available for sale) recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
- Hedging reserve: The increase or decrease in fair value of hedging instruments classified as cash flow hedging.
4/3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents difficulty encountering ADIB in meeting its financial commitments when they fall due and replace funds when
they are withdrawn. This may result in failure of the sertlement of ADIB’s obligations to repay the depositors and fulfil financing
commitments.
®  Liquidity risk management

ADIB's liquidity management process carried out by ADIB's risk management includes:

Daily funding is managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that all requirements can be met when due. This includes replacing
funds when they are due or when financing them to customers. ADIB exists in the global financial markets to ensure that this goal is

achieved.

Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that are assumed to be easily liguidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption of

cash flows.

Monitoring liquidity ratios in comparison with ADIB's internal requirements and CBE requirements

Managing concentration and financing maruricy.
For monitoring and reporting purposes, cash flows for the following day, week, and month are measured and projected. Such periods are the
key periods for liquidity management. The starting point of calculating these projections is analysing the contractual maturities of financial

liabilities and expected financial assets collections.

The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee also monitors the incompatibility berween medium-term assets, the level and type of
unused pertion of financing commitments, the extent to which Mudaraba -based working capital financing facilities, and the effect of

contingent liabilities such as letters of guarantees and letters of credit.
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

4/4 Capital management

ADIB's abjectives behind managing capital include other elements in addition to the equity shown in the statement of financial position are

represented in the following;

" Ta comply with the legal capital requirements in the Arab Republic of Egypt and ather countries in which ADIB's branches operate.
* To protect ADIB's ability to continue and enable it to continue to generate Profit for shareholders and other parties dealing with ADIB,

® Tomaintain a strong capital base that supports growth in activity.

Capital adequacy and capital uses are reviewed in accordance with the requirements of the regulatory body (the Central Bank of Egypt in the
Arab Republic of Egypt or the supervisory bodies in which the foreign branches of ADIB operate) daily through ADIB's management, through
models based on Basel Committee guidelines for banking supervision. The required dara are provided to the Central Bank of Egypt on a

quarterly basis.

CBE requires the following from ADIB:
¥ Retaining EGP 5 billion as a minimum limit of paid and issued capital.

® Maintaining a ratio between the capital base and the rotal credit risk, market and operational risks is equal to or more than 10%.

The numeraror in capital adequacy comprises the following two tiers:

Tier 1: Itis the basic capital, and it consists of paid up capital after deducting the deducting the carrying amount of wreasury shares, retained
earnings and reserves resulting from the dividends, excepe far the general banking risk reserve, less any previously recognised goodwill and
any carried-forward losses.

Tier 2: it is the subordinated capiral, which consists of the equivalent of the expected credit losses of debt instruments and financings and
contingent liabilities of stage 1 at no more than 1.25% of the total risk-weighted assets and contingent liabilities, and the subordinated

financing / depasits with more than five years” maturity terms (amortisation of 20% of their value at each of the last five years of maturity).

When calculating the total numerator of capiral adequacy criterion, subordinated capital should not exceed the basic capital, and subordinared

financing (deposits) should not exceed half the basic capital.

ADIB has complied with all local capital requirements and in the countries in which its external branches operate during the past two years.
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ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

The following table summarizes the basic and subordinated capital components and capital adequacy ratios,

According ro Basel 1l

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP {in thousands) EGP (in thousands)

Tier 1 after disposals
Basic going concern capital
issued and paid up capital 12,000,000 6,000,000
Reserves 1248062 706,365
Fairvalue reserve 333616 284547
Reszined earnings 20942457 15,831,681
Less: The bank’s investrnents in financial companies (banks or comparies)
(337,900) (232,922}
and insurance companies (shares and invastment funds}
Deferred tax (50,435) (196,968)
tntangible assets (324,039) (44,3586)
Total basic going concem capital afrer disposal 33.811.766 22,438,347
Additional basic capital
Diffarence berween FV and PV for subordinated financing 19,323 24950
Total additional basic capital 19,323 24,950
Total Tier 1 after disposal (basic capitat) 33,831,089 22,463,297
Tier 2 after disposals
Equivalent of required provisions balancas againstdebt instruments / loans
2571472 2,076,871
and credit facilities And Contingenc Liabilities incorporated in stage
Subordinared financing 9,565,217 7073,796
459 of the increase in fair value compared to carrying amount of investments
106,273 45,528
in Subsidiaries and associates
45% of special reserve 13179 15,585
Total Tier 2 after disposal 8,256,141 9,212,780
Total capizal base afrer disposal 47,087,230 31,676,077
Creditrisks 205,748,880 166,189,756
The value of averriding the top 50 clients over che prescribed limits is weightad
- 9,265,436
by riskweights
Marker risks 83,776 845,530
Operaring risks 10,621,925 7,742 300
Total assets and contingent liahilities weighted by credis, markes,
216,454,581 184,043,022
operational sisks
Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.44% 17.21%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

4/6 Leverage ratio

®  The Board of Directors of the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) atits session dated 7 July 2015 issued a resolution approving the supervisory
instructions for the financial leverage, with the banks' commitment to the minimam rate of 3% on a quarterly basis as a binding control

ratio starting from 2015,

In preparation for consideration of the first pillar of Basel (Minimum Capital Adequacy) in order to preserve the strength and integrity of the
Egyptian banking system and to comply with the best international supervisory pracrices in this regard. The leverage reflects the relationship
berween the first tier of capital used in the standard of capital adequacy (after exclusions), and bank assets (both within and outside the

financial position) are not weighted by risk weights.
Ratio components:

The numerator components

The numerator consists of tier 1 of capital (after exclusions} that is used in the numerator of capital adequacy standard currently applied in

accordance with the instructions of the Ceniral Bank of Egypt.

The denominator elements

The denaminator consists of all ADIB's assets on and off-the financial position items according to the financial statements, called “Bank

Exposures” including the following totals:

1- On-the financial position exposure items after deducting Tier 1 exclusions for capiral base.
2- Exposures resulting from derivatives contracis.
3 Exposures resulting from financing securities.
4- Off-the financial position exposures (weighted exchange ransactions).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

The following cable summarizes the leverage ratio:

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

EGP {in thousands) EGP (inthousands}
Tier 1 capital after disposats (1) 33,831,089 22,463,297
Cash and due From CBE 27,4D7,270 19,433,859
Due from Banks 53,030,895 94,537,740
Treasury bills and other government securities 17,516,588 8,195,685
Financial investments at FVPL 32,205 60,991
Financial investments at FVOCI 17,321,104 2308242
Financial investments at amortized cost 68,278825 31,564,622
Investrents in subsidiaries and associates 735,376 543,817
Total financings and credit facilities to customers 148,012,554 97813331
Fixed assets (nex of impairment loss provision & accumulated depreciation) 948,385 706,918
Other assets 16,001,244 8,225,129
Deducted amounts from axposures (some of cier 1 exclusions for capital base} {712,359} (474,296}
Total on-balance st P tems after deducting tier 1 disposal 349472077 262,917,088
Replacementcost 13,981 25402
Expected future value 44,487 20988
Pra-Pr d Istamic Co s 58,468 46,390
Treasury bills sale with repurchase commitment - 93
Exposure resulting from securities financing - 93
Total on-balance shaet exposures, pre-promised islamic contracts and
financing financial securities 349,530,545 262.963.571
Letters of credix -impore 2,198,744 1,974,911
Leteers of credic-exporc 43,508 12,009
letters of guarantee 22093122 45,798,476
lecters of guarantee requested or guarantesd by external banks 1,583,716 2,227,233
Contingent liabilities for general collaterals for financing facilities and similar

155,076 162,684

collaterals
Bank acceptance 7,441,436 7,189,088
Total contingent Rabilities 33.515.502 27.364.402
Capital commitments 330,738 286,064
Operating lease commitments 748,964 594,631
Financing commitments to clients /banks {unutilized part) original mataricy St n B Ee0RE0
pertod
Total commitments 10.968.910 5.741.573
Total exposures off-balance sheer 43,584,512 33,105,977
Total exposures on-balance sheet and off-batance sheer (2) 393,115,057 296,069,548
Financial leverage ratio (1/2) 8.61% 7.59%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

5- Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

A)

B)

ADIB uses estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities disclosed during the next fiscal year. Estimates and
assumptions are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

helieved 1o be reasonable under the circumstances and informarion available.

Estimates:

Infarmation on estimates used in applying accounting policies that have a material impact on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:

Classification of financial assets: Valuation of the business madel in which the asset shall be retained and evaluared whether
contractual terms of the financial asset shall resultin the generating of cash flows in the form of payment of profit and instalments on the

outstanding bafances of those assets.

Uncertainty Relared with Assumptions and Estimares:

Uncertainties related with assumptions and estimates of significant risks that may result in material adjustments in the financial period

ended on 31 December 2025 shall be appeared in the following notes:

- Impairment of financial instruments: An assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on finandial assets
since the initial recognition, taking into account, the impact of future informarion upon measuring the expected credit fosses.

- Determination of the fair value of financial instruments: using unobservable inputs upon measuring.

- Measurement of defined benefit liabilities: Key actuarial assumptions.

- Recognition of deferred tax assers: The existence of future taxable profits that may be benefited from forward tax losses.
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Notes te the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

6-Segment analysis
The activity segments include the operations, assets used in the provision of banking services, the management of the risks surrounding
them, and the profit related with this activity, which may differ from other aciivities. The segment analysis of operations in accordance

with the banking business include:

Large, medium and small enterprises
These include the activities of current accounts, deposits, current accounts receivable {Mudaraba), financing and credit facilities, and

financial derivatives.

Investment
This includes activities of corporate mergers, investment purchasing, financing of corporate restructuring and financial instruments.

Rerail
This includes acrivities of current accounts, savings, deposits, credit cards, personal finance and real estate finance.

Other acrivities
These indude other banking activities as the management of funds and transactions between activity segments in accordance with the
normal course of business of ADIB; assets and liabilities shail include operating assets and liabilities as presented in ADIB's financial

position,
EGP(in thoussnds)
corporate Investmant Rueail Other
31 Decatuber 2025 activities Total
R d expemses by activicy seg
fevenues of activity segmeant 6,251,466 HI45508 6801709 3593003 22.031.606
Expenses of activity segment {1526,134} {151,168) (2,344,749) (927,493) (5,349,544}
profiefor the Period before tax 4,365,332 59543490 4456960 2765510 17482142
Tax (982,200) (1.226.227) (1.0158,249) {1,534511} {4n81,186)
Net profie forthe Period 3,383,132 4,568,114 3438711 1210959 12600.956
Agsets and Esbifities bry activity segment
Assuts of activity segment 19515280 162226462 S9977 059 - 341818001
Un-classified assuts - - - 4892404 4892404
Totalasvers 119,615,280 H2.226,962 55977059 4,890,404 346,711,205
Liabilities of acriviey segment 14719750 15,857,433 142396377 - 305,445,401
Un-classified liabilities. - - - 6,630,948 65,630,948
Toralfabilities 147,197,591 1585103 142,396,377 6.630,948 312.076.349
EGP (in chousands)
corporare Imvestment Revail Other
activities. Total
R d exp by activity seg| 31D ber 2024
Revanues of activity segment 5526589 4965722 4590665 2129868 17,795,244
Expenses of activity sectors (3,570.350) {59.200) {1,703,726) (175816} {5.509,092)
profic for the Patiod before tax 21358659 4930522 2,586,939 2,014,052 12290.152
Tax (590,069) (831,657) (685,950) {1,066537} (3.274.113)
Net profiefor che Perlod 1.668.570 4,058,065 2,300,589 47515 9,015,539
Assets and libifitles by activiey sagment 31 December 2025
Assars of activity seetors 64902169 139,540,061 31,205,820 - 235,748,059
Non-Classified assers - - - 24,719,047 74,719,047
Total assets 64,902,169 139,640,061 31,205,829 24,719,047 260,467,106
Liabllides of ACTVITY $actors 109,496,835 23187979 91,319050 - 224.9%3.064
Mon-classified lfabilitles - - - 12,487335 12,497,335
Totalliabilities 9496835 24,167,172 91,319,050 12497335 237,480,399
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

7-Net profitincome

31 Deacember 2025 31 December 2024

EGP [in thousands) EGP {in thousands)
Income from Murabaha. Musharaka. Mudaraba and other similar income
Financing and facilities
Banks 248,476 126,817
customers 25,289,735 18,185,314
Total 25,538,211 18,312,231
Financialinvestments in debt instruments at AC and EVOC] 253,603 38992
Deposits and current accounts* 22674344 17,941,955
Income from Leased asssts 796,297 651,308
Total 49,262,455 36,944,486
Cost of deposits and similar costs
Deposits and current accounts:
Tobanks (525,125) (1,397,411)
Tocustomers {27,428,136) (19,445,837)
other financings (1,156,852) (B48,421)
Financing financial instruments and sales transactions of finandial instruments with a o e
repurchase commitmant
Total (29.110,120) (21,691,838}
MNet Revenues from funds 20,152,335 15,252,646

The income from deposits and current accounts with banks includes the return resulting from the Murabaha concluded with a locaf bank, and

the returns, profits and losses resulting from financial investments in government debt instruments befong 1o this bank according to the

investment restricted agency, which requires investing these amounts in government debt instruments within the limits of the return expected

and agreed upon.

In 2020, the Sharia Board of the bank approved this structure, through which Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt invests its surplus liquidity in

concluding an international commodity murabaha transaction with a local bank and concluding an investment agency contract in which the

local bank assigns Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypr as a restricted agency for investment. In the purchase of treasury bills and bonds for the

benefit of the principal, and therefore, as mentioned, the bank’s return is the profit of international commodity murabaha and the Profit of the

bills and bonds in favor of the contracted focal bank.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

8-Net fees and commissions income

31 December 2025 31 December 2028
EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Fees and commissions income:
Cradit related fers and commissions 2,062,565 1,437,840
Fees of corporate financing 63,493 20,484
Cards related fees and commissions 373049 264,840
Custody fees 5516 1,743
Other fees 1062,248 B55503
Total 3,566,871 2,590.419
Fees and commissions expenses:
Paid brokerage fees (6371) [(:3: 1]
Miscellaneous banking commission (35,581) (25,123)
Credit cards paid commissions (581,104) (550,697}
Other fees and commissions paid (213,965} {118,572}
Toral (837.021) (695.288)
Net fees and commission income 1,729.850 1.895,131
9-Dividend Income
31December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP {in thousands} EGP (in thousands)
Equityinseruments ac FVPL 1,020 1,168
Equity instruments at FYOCI 5,286 3,579
Financial investments in associates 1 668
Total 6,307 5415
10-Net trading income
31December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Foreign currencies operations:
Gain from fx deals 642242 647,833
Gain /{Loss} of Islamic forward contracts revaluation {108,755} 1,902
Gain /{Loss)of revaluation of forward Foreign axchange contracts {17,060) 10,352
Gain of currency option contraces ravaluation 7766 12513
Equity Instruments at FVPL 521 B.04b
Mutual funds at FVPL 1,857 28,065
Toral 546,571 708,711
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

11- Administrative expenses

31 December 2025 31 December 2024

£GP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Employees’ cost
Salarieswages and bensfirs (1,436334) (1,139,731}
Socialinsurance (76,705) (61,946)
Pension cost
Defined contribution plans (43923) (34812)
Definedbenefit plans (141,207) (128,546)
Depreciation and amortization {178,849) (133,481)
Other administrative expensas {1,554,205) {1,106,002)
Total (3.431.217) (2.614.518)
12-Other operating expenses

31December 2025 31 December 2024

EGP {in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Gain/ (Loss) on translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies other than those held for trading or iniially designated at FVPL (169,945) 49,251
Gain on sale of fixed assets 108,110 10,590
Gain on sale of investment proparties 2100 8,886
Cost Of Program {379,536) (338,466)
operating lease expense (245,265) (177,702)
Other assets Impairment (300) (7.268)
Other provisions (286,688) (288922)
Other expense {202,526) (183671}
Tetal {1.178.050) (927.002)
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For the year ended 31 December 2025

13- Expected credit losses

31 Decerber 2025 31December 2024
EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)

Financing and facilities 1o customers (1,462.708) (2,207,223}
Financing and Facilities to banks (4,897) (2181)
Due from banks 11644 (1,084}
Financial investments at FVOCI (1,648) 5518
Financizl imvastments ar amortized cost (50,459) 29,988

Leased Assets (5999) 4711

Total {1.514,062) (2170,571)

14-income tax expenses

31 December 2025 31 December 2024

EGP {in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Current sax (5,035071) (3,339.975)
Daferred tax 153,885 65,762
Toral {4,881.186) (3.274.213)

Additional information an deferred income tax was presented in Note (32), Taxes on ADIB's profits are different from the value resulting from

the application of tax rates as follows:

Reconciliation to calculate effective tax rate:
31 December 2025 31 Decembes 2024
EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)

Profitbefore rax 17482142 12,280,152
Applicable tax rate 25% 225%
Income tax {expenses) based on applied tax rate 3533482 2,765,284
Tax impact for

Non-taxable revenues {2.436411) {1,203973)
Non-deductible tax expenses 1,434,406 895,088
Tax of treasury bills and bonds and dividends 1,849,700 817,815
Income tax expenses according to effective tax rate 4,881,186 3,274,213
Effective tax rare 27.92% 26.64%
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15- Cash and due from Central Bank

3% December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP (in chousands) EGP {in shacsands)
Cash 1301,157 336,757
Balances with central bankwithin mandatory reserve ratic 17,785,445 12,474932
Total 19.086.612 13.811.689
MNon-Profit bearing balarces 19086612 13,811,689
Tosal 19.086,612 13.811.689

16-Due from banks

31 December 2025

EGP (in chousands)

31 December 2024
EGF {in showsarnds)

Current accounts 561,674 213,859
Placements wich ocher banks 56.881,0449 a97.926,497
Murababha due from local bark=s™ 108,590 288 48,013,050
Restricted wakala due o local banls® C1O8,590.288) 48,01 3,050)
57 442,718 B 140. 356
(less} Expecred Credic Losses (9.587) (22.6597)
Total S7 433,131 o811 7659
Balances with CBE orher chan mandatory reserve racico B,320,.711 5622227
Eocal barmks 494 596,975 B6 856 949
PMuorababa due from local banks™ 408,590,288 28013050
Restricted walkala due eo local banks™ {108, 550,288) (28,01 3,050)
Foretipgr Banks 7,525,032 S5.661.180
(less) Expecrted Credit Lostes (9.587 (Z22597)
Total 57.433.131 8,117,659
Non-Profic bearing balances 563,674 213,855
Variable profir bearing balances 48.000,211 92,307,996
Fixed profrc bnarﬁng balarnces B.790,833 5,618,501
{less) Expecred Crediz Losses 8.587) {22697y
Tozal 57433 131 98.117.659
Dus from banks” expracted cradis losses muovement
Balance ax beslrlrling of the Year 22,597 13,243
et Expeceed credit losses recogrnized duering the Year (11,644a) 1,084
Foreign exchange translarion differences (4. a55) 8370
Tozal 9.587 Z2G9T7

*Balances with banks include an amount of 108,590,288 EGP representing Murabaha due from a local bank, offser by restricted investment

agencies due to the same bank for the same amount fo invest the restricted agency amount in government debt instruments, and a set-off has

been made between them due to their fulfilment of the conditians for set-off between assets and liabilities contained in the rules for

preparing and photographing The financial statements issued by the Central Bank of Egypt on December 16.

In 2020, the Sharia Board of the bank approved this structure, through which Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt invests its surplus liquidity in

concluding an international commodicy murabaha transaction with a local bank and concluding an investment agency contract in which the

local bank assigns Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt as a restricted agency for investment. In the purchase of treasury bills and bonds for the

benefit of the principal, and therefore, as mentioned, the bank's return is the profit of international commodity murabaha and the Profit of the

bills and bonds in favour of the contracted local bank.
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17-Financing and facilities to Banks

31 December 2025
EGF (v ehoscesmota)

21 December 2028

EGF (in rhoussrdds)

Direc:t Facilities 4. 809.3129 2033 552
Total L i ey ) 23X 5S52
Iz

Expected Cradit Losses (6.830) (2825}
Toral (s.840) (z.825)
Net 4.802.479 Z2.030.727
Financirig and F, KRt o b box” Crealiw o=
arnabssin

Balance at beginming of she Year z2B2s5 =

MNer Expeceed cradic iorses recognized during che Year <1897 5 |

Foreign excharmge eranslation differences (882) 33
Tozal 5.830 2825

18-Financing and facilities to Customers

- Total financing and facilities to customers {net of deferred profit)

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

EGP (in shousands) EGP {in thouzands)
Recail
Debic current accounts 7290 2855
Credit cards 1,903,639 +.276,.893
Personal flnancing 45693 817 26,129,524
Mortgage Financng 466,430 599 717
Tozal F9,071,176 Z8.015.985

Cor race [ inclisdi SAMEs

Crebit current acconuncs 13,511,639 +3,878,758

Eirmcx fimancin 13 88772357 SB,994 995

Swyndicared financing 32313 838 1,463,357

Credic cards 746 7O
Toxal 105.598.575 T4 Z37 181
Toral financing and facklities to customers 154.669.751 192,353,370
Decluacs:

Expected Credit Losses (7,943 689) {6.662,.009)
Tozal { 7. 443 .689) (6.662.000)
e 147.226.062 295,691,071
Classified in balance shesr as follow
Converntional financings e Customers{ ner of ECL) - &t1,323
Istamic fimancings to Customers{ nec of ECL) 147,226,062 95,629,048
My 147226062 95 691,97
wVariable profit bearing balances 72012 380 83, 485,42%F
Fixed-profict bearing balances 68,213 673 32,205,650
Tocal 147, 226062 95.691.071

d Credin

Financing and Facllities 2o < =" Excp

Losses movement

31 Decembaer 2025
EGP (in rhousands)

31 December 2024
EGP (i shousandx)

Balance at beginning of the Year 6.662.000 4,213,187
Subsideries write off - 63,830
Ne: Expeceed credit loszes recognized during che Year 1,462,708 2,207,223
Recoveries from previoushy written-off financings 44 643 46,647
Lfsed from provision during che Year {530,948} (580,310}
Foreign sxchange translation differences 193,813y 711,522
Tazal 7.443.689 S662,009
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18- Financing and facilities to customers - Continued

The analysis of movement of the provision for impairment losses for financings and facilities to customers classified according ro

their types is as follows:

EGP {in thousands

Retail
31 Decrmber 2025 AL Coweredcards  Personaffinancing Wil Total
Balance at beginming of the Year - 151,862 450,126 10.713 612,701
Expected CredicLosses During the year s 58982 387363 5750 53,095
Recpveries from Writcen off loans - 9409 26,283 - 35,697
Used provisions during the year - (28424} (87,523) - (116.047)
Balance &t 31 December 2025 - 1918029 776,154 17463 985,446
Corporate
Debit current Syndicated
31 December 2025 Direct financing Covered cards Toral
aCCOINS financing
Balanca 2 baginning of the Year 705,238 4,086,554 1,257,606 5 6,049,358
Expecred Credit Losses During the year (252924} 1,002,225 269812 - 1,009,613
Raecoveries from Written offloans - $946 a - B.946
Used previsions during the year - (414,901) - = {11a901)
Foreign exchange wanslation differences {15,001} (128.584) {50.228) = (194,813)
Balance a¢ 31 Decamber 2025 427,813 4,553,240 1477,190 - 6458243
EGP (in thousands})
Retail
Debit current Mortgage
31December 2024 Covered casds Personal financing Toal
*Ccounss Financing
Balance o Baginning of the yoar . 29,360 520,432 2,011 626,812
Expocred Credit Losses Duringthe yaar 5 66476 dn,7a3 1702 08921
Recoveries from Weitten offloans - 12265 28065 - 41330
Used from provision during the ysar - (16,248) (148,114) B {164.362)
Balance at 31 December 2024 - 151,862 450,126 10,713 12701
Corporate
31 Docenber 2024 PeEe Direct nancing Syndicand Covered cards Total
accounts financing
Balance at beginning of the year 148912 2875675 560,780 8 3,596,375
Expected Cradie Losses During che yzar 297451 1030108 570,750 (8) 2.006.302
Disposals resulting from sale of subsidiaries - 63,830 - - 63,830
Recoveries from Writzen off loans - 5317 - 5317
Usad from provision during the year - (415,946) - - (#415,948)
Foreign exchange translarion differences 58875 526,571 136076 - nisn
Balance ar 31 December 2024 705,238 4,086,554 1.257,606 - 6049338
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19-Financial investments

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Financial investments at FVPL £GP (in thowsands} EGP [in thouszeds}
A} Listed ity instrumments
tocal corporate shares 16067 14924
Total equity instruments 16,062 14924
B} Mutual funds certificares
Un-Listed in stock exchange market 127,394 107095
Total mutual funds certificates 127,304 107,095
Totalfinancial investments ae FVPL{1) 143,451 122,019
31 December 2025 31 Decamber 2024
Financial investments at FVOCH EGP (i thousands} EGP (in thousands)
A) Treasury bonds - at FV
Listed in stock exchange market 12462411 1,607,748
Toral Treasury bords 12,462,411 1,607.748
B) Islamiéc Sulbouk - at FV
Listed in stack exchange market 4423413 262,944
Toral Islamic Sukuk 4423413 262,994
C) Government wreasury bills - at FV
Un-Listed in stock exchange market 5,299 234 619681
Total 6 nt treasury bills 5,209,244 619,681
Detailed T-bills maruriries as the following:
Treasury bills 0f 91 days maturity 30,700 11,625
Treasury bills of 182 days maturity 192,025 5375
Treasury bills of 273 days maruricy 366,025 -
Treasury bills of 364 days maturity 5,611,275 632025
Total 6,200,025 649,025
Uneamed revenues {904,189) {32,002)
Valuation differences of treasury bills ar Fv 3408 2658
Ner 5,299,244 619,661
D) Equity instruments ar FV
Un-Listed in stock exchange marker 387578 400,959
Total equity instruments 387,578 400,959
E} Murtual funds cenificares at PV
Un-Listed in stock exchange market 47,702 36,591
Total mutual funds cernificates 47,702 36.591
Totalfinancial investments at FVOCI {2} 22,620,348 2,927,923
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19- Financial investments _ continued
31 December 2025 31 December 20234

Financial investments at AC EGP (in thowsxrndis} EGP (i thowsxrsis)

A) Government treasury bonds

Listed in srock exchange market 52,510,460 30,105.418

Less: Expected Credic Losses (73,698) (56,.673)
Towal povernmen: treasury bonds 62,436, 764 30,048,745

B) islamic Sukuk

Listed in stcock marker exchange 5,768,366 1,459,204

(Deduct} Impairment loss prowvision (31,978) (7, 691)
Total Islamic Sukuk 5.736.388 1451513

C) Government treasury bills

Un Listed in stock exchange market 12,220,751 7,580,187

Less: Expecred Credic Losses (43,438} (39,696}
Total gover t treasury bills 12,177.313 7.540,491
Detailed T_bills marurities as the following:
Treasury bills of 182 days maturicy 450,000 -
Treasury bills of 273 days maturicy 41,875,000 —
Treaswury bills of 364 days maruricy 10,288,735 7.682,801
Fozal TRG13. 735 7682901
Unearned revenues (392084} (102,614}
Less: Expecred Credit Losses {43,438) (39,695}
Mex (1) 12,477,313 7,540,491
REPDs

Treasury bilis sold with repurchase commitment

within one week = (522)
Toral - (522)
Unearned revenues - (&0
MNet (Z) = (s26)
MNet {1+2) 12.177.313 7.530,965
Tozal financial investments at AC (3) 80,350,465 39,040,223
Total financial investments (1+2+3) 103,114,274 42,090,165
Mon-profit bearing balances 435,280 437,550
Fixed-profic bearing balances 99,722,078 40,097,473
Variable-profic bearing balances 2,956916 1,555,142
Total financial investments 103,114.274 42090, 165

Debt instruemenes Expected Credin Losses

movement 31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP (in thousands} EGP (in thousands)
Balance at the beginning of the Yaar 104,060 70 386
MNet Expecred Credit Losses during the Year 50459 (29,988)
Foreign exchange tcranslation differences (5,307} 54,662
Toral 149,112 104,060
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19-

Financial investments _ continued
Mutual funds
*Sanabel Mutual Fund

B Anlslamic equity fund, with an independent Sharia body, was launched in December 2006 and aims to create a mechanism that allows
for investors, invest in local and regional markers through moderate risk investment strategies. The fund works ta reduce the risks to
which investors are exposed through diversification into focal short- and medium-term Islamic stocks Term, Global Depositary Receipis
and Regional Shares

B The financial investments at fair value thraugh other comprehensive income include ADIB's contribution in Sanabel Mutual Fund
berween ADIB and the Arab Intermational Banking Company under the management of Cl Capital company for managing mutual funds.

B The total number of documents invested in by ADIB is 25,000 documents at market value of EGP 609.4 at 2.5% of otal rumber of
documents outstanding to reach total amount of EGP 15,236 thousand as ar 31 December 2025 (31 December 2024: EGP 9,921
thousand).

- **Aby Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt Monetary Fund with Accumulative Daify Return (El-Naharda)

= ADIBhas established Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank - Egypt Monetary Fund with Accumulative Daily Retum (El-Naharda) compatible with the
principles of Islamic Sharia law, as the fund is managed by Beltone for managing investment funds.

B The rotal number of documents invested in by ADIB is 87,165 documents ar market value of EGP 372.47 at 2.5% of the fund's roral
number of documents outstanding, so the total amount is EGP 32,467 thousand as at 31 December 2025 (31 December 2024: EGP
26,670 thousand).

The following is a summary of the movement of financial investments during the year:
EGP {in thousands}

31 December 2025 OoCi Amortized cost Total
Balance at baginning of the Period 2927923 39,000,223 41,968,145
Additions 210553009 52,378,539 263,331,548
Premium / discount Amartization 1,021,897 1637,030 2.658,947
Disposals ( Sale / redemprion} (192322514) (11,538,227) {203,860,741)
Translation difference of monetary assets in foreign currencies (20,409) {1,122,068) {1.142.478)
Changesin fair value reserve 60,442 - 60,442
Less: impairment loss provision - (45,051} {45.051)
Balance at31 December 2025 22.620,348 80,350,465 102,970,813

31 December 2024 FocCi Amortized cost Total
Balanice at beginning of the year 11,697,889 21,933,121 33.631.010
Additions 33,834,640 24,998,194 58,832,854
Premium / discount Amortization 2851536 14BL776 4,334,312
Disposals ( Sale / redemption) {45,783,179) {14,443,649) (50,226,826}
Translation difference of monetary assets in foreign currencies 184121 5,086,764 5,280,885
Changes in fairvalue reserve 132916 - 132,916
Less: impairment loss provision S {16983) (16.983)
31 December 2024 2,927,923 39,040,223 41,968,146
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19/4 Gains / (losses) of financial investments

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP {in thousands) EGP {in thousands)
Gains (Losses) from sale of investments in associates 9,155 -
Torzal 8,155 -

20- Investments in associates
EGP {in thousands)
31 December 2025 31 December 2024
Conmribusion in Associates Waluw Shase Valiee Share
Crient Takaful Insurance - Egype 548,068 20.0% 456,520 20.0%
Consumet Copparative Sociecy 25 71.4% 25 71.494%
Toral 48,093 456.545
21- Intangible Assets (net of accumulated amortization)
31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP {in thousands} EGPF {in thousands)
MNet book value at the beginning of the year 44 356 38,832
Additions 28434 24935
Amortization for the year ({23,355} (19,411}
Net book value ate the end of the year 50,435 44,356
22- Otcher assers
31 December 2025 31 Dacember2024
EGP [in thousands) EGF (in thausands)
Accrusd reventies 5020622 2,309,606
prepaid expenses 1,225,116 1,172.008
Advance payments for purchase of fixed assers 790,163 611,805
Assers reverted to the bank in settdlement of debes (Mez of impairment
862,397 2,984
losses)
Deposics and custodies 22,584 14,543
Due from Related Parties 134,713 86,390
Accounts Under Sexdements With Correspondencs 253,501 510,795
Inventory 278 1,280
Projects Inder Construction 217 -
Otherdebit balarnces Z04947,231 537,397
Total 10.356.822 5. 247,212
Prowvision for impatrment of other assers - {5,530}
MNet other assets 10.356. 822 5.241,682
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23- Fixed assets {Net of accumulated depreciation)
EGP (in thousands}
LandshPremises  kMachinery Rennovation Other assets Total

31 December 2025 Equipment

Cost 556,567 17,703 336 1,009,266 2057392

Accumulated Depreciation {43377) {64626) {174,155} {640487) {922,650)

Disposals resulting from the sale and redassification

bl {77,100} {41,285) E {632689) (181,655)

Net Book Value 436,00 1731 199,70 305,505 953,007

Net BookValue at the beginning of the year 17340 7833 218331 368956 3160

Additions 350,066 12698 6502 51312 420578

Disposals {39615} {151 (17H) (3.713) (5657)

Disposals’ Accumulated Depreciation 17178 1,840 9149 1547 30714

Depreciation charge for the year {9,478} {8,758) {22,560} {113507) (15433)

Net Book Value 43,090 10 199,701 305,505 853,067

EGP (in thousands)
Lands & Premises &Machsinery Renavation Othar sssets Toual
HDecember 224 Fqsipment

Cost uG117 106927 mpr 961667 160,756
Accumulated Depreciation {5107 {57708) {160,144} (529442) (a7}
Dispesals resuhing from the sale andredlassification of subsidiaries {77,100 {41,288} 5 {63263} (181,655)
NetBook Vaue 1759 741 il k4 38,956 Him
NetBook Value atthe beginningof thayesr 1817 7 mss 561 4741
Additions . 3.1 UE7 w1742 meH
Disposals @4 ) . () 7.65)
Disposals'Acrnmulsted Depreciarion m # e §962 750
Depreciation charge for the year (5.233) {174 {17gs1) {88033) (r2ts7)
NetBook Value 170 7553 st 368956 H3 160
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24- Investment properties
EGP (in thousands)

31 December 2025 Lands Premises Other Equipment Total
Balance at the beginning of the year 1100 5,582 - 7.982
Disposals {2,100} (1.187) - (3.287)
Depreciation for the year - {1,101) - {1101}
Balance at the end of the year - 3,594 - 3.594

EGP (in thousands)

31 December 2024 Lands Premises Other Equipment YTotal
Balance atthe beginning of the year 2,100 12,609 = 14.709
Disposals - (5,514) - (5.514)
Depreciation for the year - (1,213) - (1.213)
Balance atthe end of the year 2,100 5,882 - 7.982

25- Financial Leased Assets to Others
30 September 2025 31 December 2024
EGP (in shousznds} EGP [in thausands)
Total investments in finance lease contract 6,055,115 4,453,142
Less Down Payment - Leasing Concracrs (3,343,081) (2,390,945)
Net lmvest in Lease contract 2712054 2,062,197
Less: impairment loss provision {28,4951) (22,.397)
Net at the end of the year 2.683.563 2.039.700
26- Due to banks
31 December 2025 31 Decembes 2024
EGP {in thousands}) EGP (in thousands)}
Current Accounts 1,154,637 734,990
Deposits 4,767,120 14,082,347
Toeal 5,921,757 14,837,337
Local Banks 2598 2542117
Foreign Banks 5919,159 12,295,220
Total 5,921,757 14,837,337
Non-profit bearing balances 1,154,637 754990
Variable profit bearing batances 4767120 14,082,347
Total 5,921,757 14,837,337
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27- Customers' deposits
31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP (in chowsands) EGPF (in thousands}
Demand Deposits 95,384,602 61,541,391
Time and call deposits BZ2531,021 72277419
Saving and deposit certificares 64,401,661 42425063
Saving Deposits 31,995,770 20,580,968
Other Deposits 3551316 3,157,758
Tozal 277.064.370 199,982,599
Corporate deposits 143,291,426 113,177.810
Retail Jeposics 134572944 86,804,789
Totad 277,864,370 199.982.599
Non-profitbearing balances 28,528,530 20,637,415
Variable profic bearing balances 7,293337 -
Fixed profit bearing balances 242,042,503 179,345,184
Toral Z77,864.370 199,582,599
28- Islamic Pre-Promised exchange contracts

Currency forwards contracts represent commitments to purchase foreign and domestic currency, including undelivered spot
transactions. Future foreign currency exchange contracts and/or Profit rates are contractual obfigations to receive or pay a net amount
based on changes in currency rates, Profit rates and/or to buy or sell foreign currency or a financial instrument on a future dateata

specified price, established in an active financial market.

Credit risk at ADIB is considered low. Forward Profit rare agreements represent future exchange rate contracts negotiated on a case-by-
case basis, These agreements require financial settlements on a future dare forthe difference berween the contractual Profit rare and the
Profit rate prevailing in the market on the basis of an agreed contractual amount/ nominal value.

EGP {in thousands}

31 December 2025

J Comzacrsal
A Limbilts
norminal armount
Pre-Promised Forward exchange contraces 1,557,180 13,981 -
Pre-Promised Swap exchange contraces TIF776 - 140,892
Total 2,274,955 13,981 140,892
31 Decamber 2024
/ Comractual
Assers Liabilities
nominal amouant
Pre—Promised Forward exchange contraces 717,103 25.402 -
Pre-Promised Swap exchange contraces 757,768 - 14,710
Total 1.474.8571 25,402 14,710
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29. Subordinated Financing / Other Islamic Financings

31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP {in thousmads} EGP {in thousxads)

Subordinated Financing at reducad cost® 1,710,055 1777365
Subordinated Fi nancin-g'with cnupnn“‘ 7,025,091 7,460,491
Other Financings 1,492,850 1154415

Total 10,232,006 10401.271
Subordinated Financing st mduced cost®
Balance atthe beginning of the Period/Year 1,777,365 1,052,617
Subordinated financing cost using effective interest rate method 44571 43156
Foreign currency translation differences {111,881) 681,592

Total 1710055 1,777.365

*Subordinated financing at Reduced Cost

The subordinated financing at Reduced Cost represents an amount of 39 million US dollars granted by the Abu Dhabi Isfamic
Bank, the UAE, under a framework agreement for the agency with investment for a period of 6 years, starting from December 27,
2012, and in 2016 a supplementary agreement was concluded for the support financing contract by extending the term of the
contract to end on December 27, 2023 On March 30, 2022, another supplementary agreement was concluded for the support
financing conteact, by extending the contract term to end on March 29, 2029 instead of December 27, 2023. The bank recorded
the supporting financing at the current value using a discount rate of 3.25%, and these supplementary agreements resulted in the
loading of equity net the amount of 12,465 thousand Egyptian pounds, which represents the difference berween the nominal
value and the present value of the financing at the dare of the term extension agreement.

This agreement also resulted in an expected profit for the agent of 6.25% of the investment amount.

**Subordinated financing With Coupon

Abu Dhabi islamic Bank — UAE

On March 28, 2019, the bank obtained additional supportive financing in the amount of 30 million US dollars from Abu Dhabi
Islamic Bank, UAE, under a framework agreement for investment agency fora period of 7 years starting from March 28, 2019,
resulting in an expected profit of 9.88% of the investment amount, which is not fundamentally different from Market discount

rage.
International Finance Corporation

*0n July 7, 2023, the bank obtained a supportive financing compatible with the principles of Islamic Sharia in the amount of 50
million US dollars from the International Finance Corporation under the Murabaha system for a period of 5 years starting from July
7, 2023, resulting in an expected profit of 9.433% of the investment amount, which is not fundamentally different from the price.

Marker discount.
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30- Other liabilities

31 December 2025 31 December 2023

EGP (in showsamds) £6F (in thousands)

Accrued revenues 41023576 1,329,583
Accrued expanses 1358772 967,493
Other credit balances 9031633 5373127
Total 11.407.931 7.670.203

31- Other provisions
EGP {in thousands
Provisionsfor TaxProvson  Provisionfor Contingent  Other Provisions Totdl
31 December 25 Potential Clains Libhes
Blance & begianing ofthe Period ik L 1B um 15772
Impaimenecharged duing thePeriod 634 1000 B3 (117 0%
Usedprovision g thePesiod (1490 o) {0} - (us1)
Provision Nolenger Required {is4) (545) : - (23m)
Foreign exchange ranslaion diffeences - . (16134 - (16:194)
Balince at 30 September 2025 1736 545 18 s
Provisonsfor TaProvison  Provisonfor Comtngere. e Prnisions Toudl
3 December 94 Potential Clims Lisbdees

Bidanceat beganing of theyear 9% 4% Lol 1 wm
Impaimentchargeddring theyear 957 50 146 . 6318
Used prvision during the year (145) (16:490) . - (test7)
Provision No lenger Required (4 - (3 - (3a.7m)
Foreq exchange ranslation diferences . . kL - L
Balancear Decersbes 204 B 5092 14198 4 159,72
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32- Deferred tax Asset

Deferred tax was calculated on all temporary tax differences using the liabilicies method and using the effective tax rate for the current

financial year.

Deferred tax assets and labilities can be offset when there is a legal reason to offset berween the current taxes on assets versus the current

tax on fiabilities, in addition, when the deferred tax is following the same tax authority.

ADIB reassesses the position of deferred tax assets unrecognized at each date of the financial position and recognizes the deferred tax assets

that were not previously recognized i the extent that it becomes probable in the future that there will be a tax profit that allows the

absorption of the value of the deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax assers balances

EGP {in shousands}

Deferred Tax Assets Deferred Tax Liahilities
Taxable Impact for Temporasy differences on: 31December 2025 31December 2024 31 December 2025 31 Dacember 2024
Fixed Assets Depreclasion - - {84518) (83,178}
Provisions {echer than provision for lnansimpairmentboss } 501,845 46372 - -
Diffarancas of ch gesin fairvalue for finandal i atFvOGd = (95,348) {82,396)
Profitin suspanss 21,169 15,466 - -
Other - (5,263) (69,287}
Total Deferred Tax Assets/ {Liabifities) 30U 431,838 {185,129) {234.570)
Net Deferred Tax Assers / (Liabilities) 337,885 196,968
Movemment of defarred tax assets and liabifities

Deferred Tax Assers Deferced Tax Liabilicies

31 December 2025 31 Dacember 2024 31December 2025 31 December 2024
Balance at che beginning of the year 431,238 30509 (234870) {141,766}
Additions 91,176 116519 49744 {93,104}
Tatal batance ot the end ofthe year 523014 431038 {185,129) (234.870)

31 December 2025 31December 2024
eqity
Differances of changesin fair value for finandal investments st FVOQ (95,346) (82,396)
Total resecves arthe end of the year (95.348) (82.396)
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33-Capiral

33/1- Authorised capital
The authorized capital amounted to 20 billion Egyptian pounds (December 31, 2024: 10 billion Egyptian pounds).

33/2Issued and paid-up capital
The issued and paid-up capital amounted to 12 billion Egyptian pounds (representing 1,200 million shares with a nominal value of

10 Egyptian pounds per share) (December 31, 2024: 6 billion Egyptian pounds)

34- Reserves

31 Decembes 2025 31 December 2024

EGP {in thousanihs) EGP (irs thouzands)
Legal Resarve 918,748 477941
General Reserve 54,955 54,955
Special Reszrve 29287 3634
Capital Reserve 57,194 46,304
General Risk Reserve 219979 219979
Fairvalue reserve 333,630 284561
Total reserves 1,613,793 1118374

Reserves movements are as follows:
34/1- Special Reserve
31December 2025 31December 2024
EGP {in thousaads) £GP [in thousands)

Adjustments resulting from the effect of change in the measurement
palicy of AFS financial investments for previous years 34634 31,968
Adjustments resulted from changes in foreign currency of monetary
items translation for associaces (5,347) 2,666
Total 20,287 34634
Balance ar the beginning of che year 34634 31,968
Transfarred from (to) retained losses (5347) 2,666
Toral 29,287 34634
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34- Reserves -Continued

34/2- Capital reserve

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

EGP (inthousands) EGP (inthousands)
Balance at the beginning of the year 46,304 4,748
Transferred from (2o} retainad samings 10,890 41,556
Total 57,194 46,304

34/3- Fair value reserve

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

EGP (in thousands) EGP (in choysands)

Balance at the beginning of the year 284,561 478,049
Met change in fair value of equity inscruments during

the year 6,152 o8,888
Net change in fair value of debt instroments at OCI 54 790 34,028
Expected credic lesses for debt instorument ax FVOC 1,578 5,518
Deferred income eax recognized during the year {12,951) (31,922)
Total 333.630 284,561

35-Retained earnings

31 Dacemnber 2025

31 Decembers 2024

EGP (in thoussnds) EGP (in thousands)

Balance atthe beginning of the year 15,815,345 8,569,192
MNet profic for the year 12,588,572 9,008,528
Transferred to Legal Reserve (440,806) (222.451)
Transferred to Capiral Reserve (10,820} (41,556)
Remuneration for board members and Employees (BB5,929) (448,482)
Remuneration for board members (57.671) (35,190}
Banking Systemn Development Furwd (88,593) (44,848}
Amoradzation of subordinated financing costusing

effective interest rate 44571 43,156
Fres Shares Dividedns (6,000,000) {1,000000}
Subsidiaries prior years adjustments 22,238 1,246
Dividends paid - Associates (23,673) (14,250)
Total 20,963,164 15815345
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36- Contingent liabilities and commitments
31 December 2025 31 December 2024
EGP (in thousands} EGP (in thousands)

Letrers of Cradic (import/ export} 11,211,401 9973110
Letters of guarantes 44 354 310 31,839,568
Acceprance Letter 7441436 7,190,358
Financtal Bank guarantees 3208515 4,487 803
Total 66,255,762 53,490,839

86
C1 - Internal Financial Control FRU




ABU DHABI ISLAMIC BANK (ADIB) — EGYPT —S.A.E

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2025

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include the following balances with original maturities

not exceeding three months from the date of acquisition:

38-

31 December 2025 3 December 2024
EGP (in thousands} EGP (in thousands)
Cash and Due from CBE 1,301,167 1,336,757
Due from banks with less than 3 months maturity 46,808,345 78,741,383
Treasury bills of 31 days maturity 30,700 11624
Total 486,140,212 50,089,764
Transactions with related pariies
38/1- Transactions with related parties’ balances included during the Year are as follows:
31 Decermbe 2025 31 December 2024
RelsionshipNatwe ~ AccoumNature  Trasaction Narure B6P{in thousands) E62 (i thuercands)
MajorSharcholders  Assets DuseFrom banks EIR) 2008
MajorSharcholders  Agsers OtherAssety 113 B5806
MajorSharsholders  Lisbildes Duemobanks 296 75
MajorShareholders  Lsbiiies Sobordinated Faancing §3305% 6AH31S
MajorShareholders  Liabilities OtherLiahilities w5 2153158
MajorSharcholders  Liabies Managmen: fees 109035 242816
MajorSharehokders  Sharcholders equiy Diffrence between face and pesent valu For sbordnated financing atReduced Cost 18313 24990
Associates Companies  Liabiities Customers deposits Ime 306225
38/2- Transactions with related parties’ balances included during the Year are as follows:
31Dacember 2075 31 Decembes 2624
RebionshipNature  AccountNature  Trassaction Nater £GP {in thousands) EaP (inthaesands)
MajorShareholders  Revenues Incarne from Murabaha, Musharaka, Mudaraba and ocher similar income 800
MajorSharchalders ~ Expenses Coseof subordinzzed financing At Reduced Cost using ER method (43377) (194145}
MajorShareholders  Expenses Castof subordinsted financingwith coupan (121.764) {193084)
MajorSharzhelders  Expenses Costaf Degosits Paid Tobanks 130000 {555,789)
Assocates Compinies  Expenses CostofDeposins Paid To Custrners @77%)

*The wages, salaries and benefits in kind on 31 December 2025 include an amounit of EGP 95,250 thousand, which represents the

toral amount of the twenty largest employees who earn bonuses, salaries, and benefits in ADIB altogether.
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39- Defined benefits obligations

Liabifities recognised in the statement of financial position:

Amounts recognised in the statement of income:

Unrealized actuarial losses are amortized over the remaining average working years, and the amortization for the year amounted

to EGP 83,707 million.

The main actuarial assumpticns used by ADIB are as follows:

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

Liabilities recognized in statement of financial position: EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
post-recirement medical benefits 4531619 369,454
Toral 453,157 309.459
Existing balances in balance shret comprise:
Presencvalue of financed liabilities S0, 365 529077
Unrealized acenarial losses (148.203) {159,623)
Liabilicies in balance sheer 453,162 369,454
Movement of habilities during the year is as follows
Escirnaced obligacion ar the baginning of year 529077 SO0.891
Cosc of current service 2,336 2166
cost of incorme 113,381 106,636
Arcuarial losses /S [(Gains) {17.707) (34,175)
Benefics paid {25,722 (45,451)
Estimated obligations during the year 601,365 529,977
Bxlance shees seoslemwse
Liabilities (ass=ts} irv batance shest 360,454 287,359
Calculation of recognized pension in profits or losses in the 541,201 128,546
Paid benefic directhy by the company in financial year (57.493) (46,451)
Liabilities { assers ) in balance sheet the end of year 453 162 369.454

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

Amounts recognized in income statements EGP {inthousands) EGP {inthousends)
post-retiremeant medical benefics (141,201} (128,546}
Total {141.201) (128.546)

Amounts recopnized inincome statements compirise:

Cost of currenc service 143,201 128,546
Comt of marly ren Erimed i protit or Ioss 41201 126,546

31 December 2025

31 December 2024

The main actuarial assumptions used by the bank are 2= EGP (in thousands) EGP (in thousands)
Discoune on medical benefizs post retiremsnc rare 20.56% 23 .35%
Increass of compansacion race 17.25% 16.00%
Inflation race 12.30% 26.53%
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Defined benefits obligarions - continued

39/1 Savings Insurance Fund for Employees
On 1 July 2013, ADIB established the Private Social Security Fund {the Fund) under Law No. 54 of 1975, regarding "The Private

Insurance Funds Law and its Executive Regulations”. ADIB registered the Fund an 14 fanuary 2014 under registration number with
the Financial Regulatory Authority (FRA) (884). The Fund started as of 1 April 2014. The provisions of this Fund and its

amendments shall apply to all employees of the main office of ADIB and its branches in the Arab Republic of Egypt.

ADIB is obliged to pay the due contributions to the Fund for each month as calculated in accordance with the Fund's Regulations
and its Amendments. The Fund is generally financed through monthly contributions and some other resources specified in the
Fund's Regulations.

Insurance benefits are paid in the case of termination of service due to the member reaching the age of retirement, death,
permanent disability or permanent partial disability that terminares the service. In the event that the term of membership is less
than (3) three years, the member of the Fund will be paid the final balance of his account corresponding to the contributions paid by

him to the Fund on the date of termination of service or membership.

The approval of FRA has been taken 1o startinvesting the employees’ monthly contributions and depositing them in the investment

account of the Fund Manager.

39/2 System of defined benefits for the medical care of the senior employees during the period of service and after
retirement
ADIB has a defined benefit system for medical care for senior employees during the period of service and after retirement. ADIB has

assigned an independent aciuarial expert to estimate the liabilities arising from the above-mentioned medical care system using the
projected unit credit method in calculating liabilities.

The most important assumptions used by the actuarial expert are as follow.: -

e Montality Rate Based on British table AG7-70ULT for death rates

- The rate of inflation of medical care costs 26.53%,

- Profit rate used as a basis for deduction 23.5%.

- (Projected Unit Credit Methody) is used in the calculation of liabilities.
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40- Tax Position

1. ADIB- Egypt

Tax on Corporate Profits
Year 20118/ 2019
®  All taxes due for that period were reviewed and paid.
Year 2020/ 2021
® No claims have been Filed to the Bank and tax inspection is under processing through the electronic tax inspection system.
Year 2022/2024
* No claims have been Filed to the Bank and did not receive an examination date yet, meanwhile the bank is submitting Tax

Declaration on time.

Salaries tax

Years until 2020

¥ The taxinspection for that period was completed and all due taxes were paid.

Years 2021/ 2022

® The taxinspection for that period was completed and a claim was filed to pay only the Tax Principle amount and the bank

paid. Regarding the Late Fees claim on the bank will be filed after applying Law No.16 For year 2020.

Years 2023/ 2024

® No claims have been Filed, monthly Settlements have been uploaded Regularly and in Time Quarterdy and Annual
serlements were uploaded.

Years 2025

® monthly Serdements have been uploaded Regularly and the bank is in Process of Uploading Yearly Settlements And Form

4 Salaries for the Fourth Quarter

Stamp dury

Years Until 2022

®  The tax inspection for that period was completed and the Settled

Years 2023/ 2024

®  The bank is Uploading all Forms, hawever , no tax inspection till date.
Sales tax

Years Unril 2015

® Examination, linking, and payment of sales tax have been completed from the beginning of registration uril the year 2015.

Years 2016/ 2020

® the inspection is Completed has been Completed and tax settfement is in Process with Major Financiers.

Years 2021/ 2024

" the bank Was Notified with the Tax Inspection, and All Documents Were Prepared and Delivered to Major Financiers.
Real Estate tax

® Real estate tax on buildings owned by ADIB is paid each year periodically and all due taxes were paid till 2023.
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40- Tax Position - continued

National company for trading and development (ENTAD)

Sales taxes

The tax audit was conducted by the Sales Tax Authority until 31/12/2022, and the company paid all the due differences

based on the tax office's audit. Thus, the company has settled the original, additional, and compensation amounts.

Stamp Duty and Development Fee

The tax audit was conducted by the Shubra El-Kheima Tax Authority until 31/12/2005, and the company paid all the due
differences based on the 1ax office’s audit.

For the period from 1/1/2006 to 31/12/2012, the company was notified of a payment demand of EGP 89,745. The
company paid EGP 30,000 on account while appealing and refersing the dispute to the competent courts. The serlement

with the tax office is ongoing to resolve the dispute.

Salary Tax

The tax audit was conducted by the Joint-Stock Companies Tax Authority untl 31/12/2004, and the company paid all the
due differences based on the rax office's audit.
For the period from 1/1/2005 until now, no tax audit has been conducted. The company remits the due 1ax based on the

monthly payroll sheets in accordance with the faw.

Corporate Tax and Movable Values

The tax audit was conducted by the Joint-Stock Companies Tax Autharity until 31/12/2004, and all dues were settled and
paid according to the final seulement dated 28/11/2018, except for the years 1999/2001, where a primary ruling of EGP
88,294 was issued and settled according to the execution of the ruling.

For the pericd from 2005/2008, the tax recum submitted by the company was approved.

For the period from 2010/2012, the tax was estimated arbitrarily ar EGP 1,011,122, and a memorandum was submitted 1o

the appeal committee

Cairo national company for investment & Securities

Income Taxes

For the years 1995 to 2012, the audit, settlement, and payment were completed.

For the years 20113 to 2014, the appeaf committee issued a decision to re-examine these years.

For the years 2015 to 2017, an estimated assessment was made and appealed.

For the year 2018, the company was notified of an estimated assessment with Form 19, but no appeal has been filed ro
dare.

For the years 2019 to 2021, they are included in the tax authority's audit plan.

Work is ongoing to benefit from Law 30, Anicle 3 to finalize the audit from 2013 to 2022
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40- Tax Position - continued

Tax on Salaries and the Equivalent

- Forthe years 1995 to 2020, the company was audited, and all due taxes and audit differences owed to the authority were
settled and paid.
- The audit for the years 2020 and 2021 is ongoing.

~  Forthe year 2023 to date, no audit has been conducted

Stamp Duty
- Forthe years 1995 to 2010, the company was audited and the due stamp duty was paid.

- Forthe years 2011 to date, no audit has been conducted.
Real Estate Tax

- -The company pays its due tax according 1o the {atest valuation of the company's headquarters, and the tax has been paid

until 31st December 2024 without any dispute with the Authority

4. AbuDhabi Islamic Capital to promote and cover the subscription of securities- ADIB Capital

Corporate Tax

- Foryears 2013/2014 The inspection and Settlements Is Complete.
- Foryears 2015/2016 The company received Form-19 with an estimated tax of 5,340,398 Egyptian Pounds. An objection has
been filed within the legal deadlines, and the documents are being prepared for the re-examination.

- Foryears 2017 To 2022 The company has not been notified with any forms until the current date.

Salary Tax

- Years 2012/2014 The examination has been completed, and the company has approved the decision of the Dispute
Resalution Committee at the authority.

- Years 2015/2020 Tax Inspection is Completed and the Commitee Decision is Approved and Form (1/3) has been Received
under Number 2364 Dated 30 May 2024 From Tax Authority Nurnber 18389 dared 2 june 2024 with Tax Differences

= Years 2021/2023 The company has not been notified with any forms until the current date.

Stamp Duzy

- Years 2012 To 2019 The company received Form-19 for stamp duty covering a period with tax differences amounting to
820,000 Egyptian Pounds. An objection has been filed within the legal deadlines, and the re-examination is currently
underway.

- Years 2020 To 2022 The campany has not been notified with any forms unil the current date.
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40- Tax Position - continued

5. Abu Dhabi Holding for financial investments - ADIB Holding

Corporate tax

- The audit and payment were completed from the start of operations until 2014, and work is currently underway ro finalize
the settlement.
- Forthe years 2012/2021, the audit was completed and estimated payment of 1 million EGP is Made.

- Forthe years 2022/2023, the campany has not received any notificarions requesting an audit to date.

Salary Tax
- Forthe years 2011/2021, the audit and approval were completed, Form 3/1 for payment was received, and a tax amount of
EGP 419,982 was approved, with a late fee of EGP 664,454, totalling audit differences and late fees of EGP 1,084,436, The
principal amount of EGP 419,982 was paid on 5/2/2024.
- Forthe years 2022/2023, no audit notifications have been received to date.
Stamp Duty
- The company is subjected to the Stamp Law No. 111 of 1980 which was amended by law No. 143 Of 2006 and its
amendments.

= The company's books have norbeen examined to dare.

vAT

- The company's books have notbeen examined to date.

6. Abu Dhabi Islamic For Finance — ADI Finance

Corporate Tax

- Period from commencement of activity until 2018 , The tax inspection completed.
- Forthe years 2019 1o 2021, The tax inspeciion for that period was completed, which resuited in tax variance EGP
3,829,538, An appeal was filed within the legal timeframe and a hearing with the internal committees is currently being

scheduled

- Forthe years 2022 to 2023, The company was not natified to submit examinarion, according to the company's natification

Salary Tax

- Period from commencement of activity until 2017, The tax inspection is completed.
- forthe period 2018 to 2021, the required documents were prepared and submitred to tax authority and waiting for
processing the examination.

- forthe period 2022 10 2023, The Company was not netified by any forms, according to the company's netifications,
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Tax Position - continued

Stamp Duty

- The examination of the stamp duty was completed up 1o 31/12/2010, and the settlement and all due the taxes were paid

- Forthe years 2011 ro 2016, Examination and settlement have been completed.

- For the years 2017 to 2018, the company was notified of a tax of 100,000 Egyptian pounds as per Form 19, and an appeal
was filed within the legal deadlines

- Forthe years 2019 to 2023, the company was not notified of any forms, according to the company's notifications.

7. Abu Dhabi Islamic Bank for Consumer Finance - ADt Consumer Finance

Corporate Tax

- The Company is Subjected to Corporate Tax Law Number 91 For Year 2005 and its annexes.

= The Campany did not receive any Forms Or Notification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined till Date.

Tax of Salaries, Wages and Equivalent

- The Company is Subjecred to Corporate Tax Law Number 91 For Year 2005 and its annexes.

- The Company did not receive any Forms Or Notification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined till Dare.
Stamp Duty

- The Companyis Subjected to Corporate Tax Law Number 111 For Year 1980 and its annexes.

- The Company did not receive any Forms Or Natification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined till Date.

Withholding Tax

- The Company did not receive any Forms Or Notification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined till Date.
VAT
- The Company is not Subject To VAT.

8. Abu Dhabi islamic - Egypt for Micro financing ‘Arzaq’

Corporate Tax

- The Company is Subjected to Corporate Tax Law Number 91 For Year 2005 and its annexes.
- The Campany did not receive any Forms Or Notification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined till Date.

- The Company Submits tax Returns int legal Times and Taxes are Paid Accordingly.

Tax of Salaries, Wages and Equivalent

- The Company is Subjected wo Corporate Tax Law Number 91 For Year 2005 and its annexes.

- The Company did not receive any Forms Or Norification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined till Dare.
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40- Tax Position - continued

Stamp Dury

- The Companyis Subjected to Corporare Tax Law Number 111 For Year 1980 and its annexes.

- The Company did not receive any Forms Or Notification till Date and the Company is not was not Examined tifl Date.
Withholding Tax

= The Company did not receive any Forms Or Notificarion till Date and the Company is nat was not Examined till Date.
VAT

- The Company is not Subject To VAT.

9. Abu Dhabi lslamic Properties - ADIB Properties

Commercial and Industrial Profits Tax

- The years 2013/2014 were examined, the objection was made, the referral was made to the Appeal Commiittee, and it was
appealed and ransferred to the cour.

= The years from 2015 10 2019 have been examined and appealed, and an appointmentis being setin the internal committees
of the tax office.

= The years 2020/2022 The company received a request for examination, and the processing has not been compleed yer,

pending the resolution of issues related to previous years by the committees.

Tax of Salaries, Wages and Equivalent

- The Company has been examined and paid the taxes tifl 2019.
- The Company has not been examined from 2020 till dare.

Stamp Duty

- The Company has not been examined till date.

41- Significant Events
Economic facrors
®  The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) of the Central Bank of Egypt (CBE) decided 1o cut che CBE's overnight deposit rate,
overnight lending rate and the rate of the main operatian by 725 basis points to 20%, 21% and 20.50% respectively. The

commirtee also decided to cut the Credit / discount rate by 725 basis poines to 20.50%.

e Standard & Poor’s credit rating agency announced on 10 October 2025 that they have revised Egypt’s credit rating From
“B-" to “B” while maintaining the Stable Qudook.

o Fitch credit rating agency announced on 10 October 2025 Maintaining Egypt's credit rating on “B” with Stable Outlook.
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